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Moi lJ niversity
Annual Report and Financial Statements
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l. Acronyms, Abbreviations and Glossary of Terms

A: Acronyms and Abbreviations

CEO

DG

CBK

ICPAK

IPSAS

MD

NT

OCOB

oAc

OSHA

PFM

PPE

PSASB

SACAs

SC

WB

VC

Chief Executive Officer

Director General

Central Bank of Kenya

Institute ofCertified Public Accounrants of Kenya

International Public Sector Accounting Standards

Managing Director

National Treasury

Office ofthe Controller of Budget

Office of the Auditor Ceneral

Occupational Safety and Healrh Act of2007

Public Finance Management

Property Plant & Equipment

Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

Semi-Autonomous Governmenl Agencies

State Corporations

World Bank

Vice Chancellor

B: Glossary of Terms

Fiduciary Management- Members of Management directly entrusted with the responsibility of
fi nancial resources of the organisation

\

Comparative Year- Means the prior period

tiil
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2. Key University Information and Management

(s) Backgroundinformation

The University was established under the Moi University Act in 1984 as the second public
University in Kenya. The University is a body corporate established under the Moi University
Chaner 2013 and is domiciled in Kenya. [t has Campuses and Constituent Colleges as listed
below.

Nairobi Satellite Campus

P.O Box 63056-00200

Nairobi

Coast Satellite Campus

P.O Box 3735-80100

Mombasa.

Kitale Satellite Campus

P.O Box 1424-20200

Kilale

Rivatex East Africa Limited Factory

Kipkaren Road, off Eldoret- Kisumu Road

P.O.Box 4744- 30100

Eldoret

Annex Campus.

P.O. Box 4603-30 I 00.

Eldoret.

College of Health Sciences

P.O Box 4606-30100

Eldoret

Bomet Un iversity College

P.O. Box 701 -20 1400

Bomet.

/
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The Main Carnpus of the University is located in Kesses. 35 kilometers liom Eldorcr 
.l-opn. 

and 310
kilomelers Northwest of Nairobi. the capital city ol' Kenya. Moi Universitr has expanded
tremendoLrsly over the past decade largely based on the comrnitment of the enrirc Moi Univcrsity
fiaternitl. government investments, strategic partnerships. and the visionarl leadcrship of the
University Council and Management. These achievernents are a testament to thc resilience and
fortitude ofevery faculty and staff member.

Since 1984, the University has experienced phenornenal growth leading to the establishrnent of
several constituent colleges across the country, many of which have since grown to fully fledged
Universities namely Maseno University. Masinde Muliro tJniversity of Science and l'cchnology,
Maasai Mara University, University of Kabianga, Universitl' o1'Eldoret, Karatirra tlrriversity .Rongo
Universitv and Alupe University that was recently granted a charter on 2"d August 2022 to be a tully-
tledged un iversity.

The University currently has the following Schools:

- School of Education

- School of Arts and Social Sciences

- School ofBusiness and Economics

- School ofAgriculture and Natural Resources

- School of Information Sciences

- School of Engineering

- School of Medicine

- School of Public Health

- School of Nursing

- School of Dentistrl

- School of Law

- School of Tourism, Hospitality and Evenrs Managetnent

- School of Sciences and Aerospace Studies

- School ofGraduate Studies, Research and Innovation

The University also wholly owns the Rivatex East Africa Lirnited (REAL), a limited liability conrpany
that rvas acquired in the year 2007 and incorporated under the Cornpanies Act, Ibr purpose ofTraining,
Research and to undertake Commercial activities for Income generation purposes.

(b) PrincipalActivities
'l he principal Activity/M ission of the University' is to provide University' edLrcarion through
teach ing, research and outreach.

l
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'l'he University's vision, mission, core yalues and philosophy underpin even, facel of the
lJ oiversity's operalions.

Core Values

I'

LI
{

Vision
To bc thc []llircrsitv ofChoicc i|l nurl[ring innovation nnrl talent in scietrca.

I ec h n olog-l-. n n{l dc} elopm enl

Lrlelleclual freedom,
erccllenco :rnd thc aruth

tv
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Philosophy
Pr.rtting.knowledge to work is the University's guiding philosophl. At Moi
Univer.sity, .the discovery dissemination, and ap"pticatiin' of friu*teag. aie
sy'nergistically balanced. The University is driven b1'the process of involvciment _

involvement in world affairsi in the needs of individuals and their corrnrunities.
businesse^s. industries.^and governments; in the nurturing of inquisitive mindil iii
thu transler of ideas from the campus to the rnarkcr- p'iacel and i'volver,cnt i.
societal problems in our country and b-eyond. lhe crcation of new knowledge thatwill benefit society is at the hearr ofihe university'r,rir.ion.'r'he disrincrion
hctrreen basic and applied research has beconte ntore blLrrred as the proccsscs Ltl
r'lirc.very. sclentific.inquiry and schorarship infbrrn aI aspects of the edueatiorrar
enterprise at Moi U niversity.

(c) Ke1'Management

'l hc tlniversity's day-to-day management is under the fbllou,ing key organs

- The University Council;

- The Vice Chancellor;

- The University Management Board:

- 'l he University Senate.

(d) l'iduciaryManagement
-l 

he ke1'rnanagement personnel rvho held of'fice during thc llnancial year cndcd ..10,r, Jsne 2023
and uho had direct fiduciary responsibility rvere:

No. Name

Proll lsaac S. Kosgey

Prof. Kirirni H. K iriarniti

Ag. Chief Finance Ofllcer CPA I--gla C'. K. Sarrroei

Senior Legal Officer Ms. Pctrol ina (-hcpkrvony

7

Designation

Vice Chancellor

') DVC- Adrn in, Planning and Strareg)

l DVC- Academics. Researclr. Extension &
Student affairs Prol'. Isaac N. Kintengi

Principal - College of Health Sciences ProL llobert K. 1'engel
)

6

Ag. tlead of Procuretrent Mr. Wilson Ilctt
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(e) FiduciaryOversightArrangements

The University council provides fiduciary oversight on the financial operarions of the
University through the Finance, Administration and strategy committee and the Audit, Risk
and Compliance Committee.

The Finance, Administration and Strategy committee reviews the University euarterly
Financial statements before they are submitted to the Ministry of Education and National
Treasury by the l5th day after the end ofevery quarter.

The Audit. Risk and Compliance Committee provides ovcrsight on the University's financial
starements and through the lntemal Audit Unit of the University provides oversight on the
internal controls and the maintenance of proper accounting records.

The office of the Auditor General conducts annual audit of the operations of the University.
The reports of the Auditor General are submitted to the National Assembly through the public
Investments committee (P.l.c), which provides the overa fiduciary oversight on the operations
ofthe University.

Regular audit and financial and progress reports are provided to development partners who have
provided funds to the University. This is to ensure financial probity on the utitizarion of funds
in the University.

vt
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(f) UniversityHeadquarters

Moi University Main Campus
P.O. Box 3900-301 00
Cheptiret - Kesses Road, Off Eldoret-Nairobi Road
Eldoret. KF NYA

($ [Jn ivcrsity Contacts

Telephone: ( 254) 736 138770t77 I 33691I
E-mail: info mu.ac.ke
Website: www.mu.ac.ke
Rivatex East Africa Limited Contacts

T elephone: (254) 53 2030901

E-rnail: info(Eriv atex.co.ke

bsite. www. ri tex.co

(h) [-lniversiSBankers

l. National Bank of Kenya
Moi Un iversity Branch
P.O. Box 22 - 30107

Moi University, Kenya

3. Ken1,a Commercial Bank
[:ldoret Branch

P.O Box 560 - 30100
Eldoret, Kenya

a) Standard Chartered Bank

Eldoret Branch

P.O Box 7 - 30100

Uldoret, Kenya

7. Access Bank
E ldoret Branch

P.O Box 4308 - 30100

Eldoret, Kenya

2. Co-operative Bank ol'Kcnr a

Eldoret Branch

P.O Box 2948 - 30100

Eldoret, Kenya

.1. Equity Bank
Eldoret Branch

P.O Box 2210 - 30 100

Eldoret, Kenya

6. Absa Bank of Kenya
Eldoret Branch

P.O Box 22 - 30100

lildoret, Kenya

vlt
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(i) IndependentAuditors

Auditor General

Office of the Auditor General

Anniversary Towers, University Way

P.O. Box 30084 GPO 00100

Nrinobi. I(enye

i(l) Prlacipal Legal Advtsor

The Attomey General

Stale Law Office

Hararnbee Avenue

P.O. Box 40112

City Square 00200

Nrlmbl. Konye

I

I
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3. Members of The University Council

Dr. Dr. Humphrey Kimani Njuguna
Ph.D. Law, Ph.D. Entrep
Chairman
D.O.B - l8'h July, l96l

PhD (Law) (UoN). PhD (Enrrep.)
(JKUAT).

EMBA (JKUAT)i LLM (tnt. Trade &
Invest. Lau )UoN

LL.B (Hons) UoNl B.A. Land Econ
(Hons)

Dip. K.S.L: Dip. l.S.K.: M.t.S.K.:
F.I.S.K.

MCIArb.; Lead Expe(- EIA/EAl CPM
(MTI-EA)

Va luer: Estate Agent: Arbitrator:
Mediator; Adv. of H.C. of Kenya
Dr. Dr. Njuguna has sound knowledge in
Law, Land Economics. Public
Administration and Entrepreneurship,
Conflict and Dispute Resolution
Management and related Consultancy
Practices in Kenya spanning to close to 32
years.

He is the current Chairrnan ol Former
Parliamentarians Assoc iation ol' Kenya,
Managing Director Metrocosnro Limited,
Senior Partner - Njuguna Kimani Nduhiu
& Company Advocates. Director. Beyuz
Communication Ltd, former Member of
Parliament for Gatanga. He was the Lead

Consultant in the drafting of the Valuers

Act, Republic of Tanzania, and a former
chairman and member of lnstitutions of
Surveyors of Kenya (l.S.K) Chairman
(Valuers and Estate Agents) I.S.K,
Examiner lValuers Chapter) lSK.

He is a part time lecturer at JKUAT and

University of Nairobi (School olLaw).

lx
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Mr. Christopher Khaenrba
Independent Member

D.O.B - l8'h January.1960

MBA. (Kenyatta Un ivers ir) ).

Diplorna in Science Education. Kenya
Science Teachers College (Constituent
College of the Universitl ol Nairobi)

Mr. Khaemba is an educator. tnentor and
Irrrnaround leader u ho thrives in
chal lenging and new environrnents.

He is the co-founder and Director ofNova
Pioneer Academies and Chair of the
Kenya Board. He has been the County
Executive for Urban Planning and Lands.
Nairobi County. CountY Executive in
charge of Education, Youth Alfairs.
Sports. Children. CultLrre and Social
Serv iccs, Nairobi Countl .

He serves as a rnember of the Board of
Housing Finance Foundation. was the
Vice-Chairman of the Local Organizing
Cornmittee of the 20t7 IAAI-- World
Athletics Youth Charnpionsh ips. lle has

been the head ol rhc follorving
institutions: Friends School Kamusinga
(Kenya), The Alliance High School
(Kenya) and the founding head, Alrican
Leadership Academy (Sourh Africa).

lle has also been the EdLrcation Advisor in
the Office of the Prirne Minister. Ceneral
Manager. Education Pillar. L:quitr Croup
lirLrndation where he hclped to shape
Wings to Fly Scholarship l)rogramme and

Deputy Director at the Teachers Service
Commission focusing on teacher
rnanagement.
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J

Prof. Clara Samiji M., Ph.D., EBS
Independent Member

D.O.B I 5'h September, 1954

PhD in Kiswahili Literary and Cender
Studies (Kenyatta) M.A. in Kiswahili
Studies (Kenyatra), U.Ed. (UoN )

t']roll Sanriii is a Prot'cssor ol Kisrrahili
and cLrrrentlf is the Managint Partner,
Aliica 'l'rans lingLral 'l rarrslators (AT1').
A Fulbright Prograntnte AlLrtrrri. she has

scrvcd as a nrernber of thc Senate

Postgraduate Cornrn itte c. Catholic
Unircrsitl of Last Alircir. ( llirirpcrs(rn.
Langtrage. Litcraturc an(l ( onln)unicati()n
Dcpanrnent (( Ul:A). t hrrirperson.

Un ivers ity Facult) I)rogranunes

Committee (CUEA), rnembcr of the
Adm inistrative Board. School of
Postgraduate Studies (CUEA), rnember of
Unir ersity Senatc (CUEA). (-hlirpcrson

Kisrvahili Departrncnt (CitlEA rnd KU),
Internal Quality AssLrrance Cornlnittee
Mcrrher (CU I:A ). rrrcrDlre r r)l 5tccrillg
Corrnrittee, Acadcrn ic Managernent

Sr stcrns (CU EA) and Board Mernbe r,

Intc'llectual Property Rights. Kenyatta
U n ive rsity.

She has also bcen thc'Narional Sccretary

Cencral of Chanra Cha Kisrrahili Cha
Taita (CHAKITA) and (loord inator
Kiswahili Department Staff Seminars

Corrrnittee (KU).

PhD. Agricultural Sciences (University of
Kassel, Germany), MSc. Ene rg1, [,olicy
(tJniversitl, of Dundee. tlK). BSc.

Environrnental Plann ing and

N4anagernent. (Ken)atta Unirersitl )

Dr. Guyo is a NatLrral l{esource

N4anagerrent and Livestock Marke ting
erpert with erlcnsir c c\Pcricncc in

conceptualizing. rnanagirrr and

rntrn itorirrg developrncnt prorrarurncs in

Dr. Gu1'o Malicha Rotra
Independent Member

D.O.B - 10"' February, 1977

4

xl



Moi University
Consolidated Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023.

5

Mr. David K. Ronoh
Independent Member

D.O.B - 3 lst December, 1959

Eastern and Southern Afiica and the wider
horn of Africa.

He is the Country Technical Analyst at

lnternational Fund for Agricultural
Development. He has also rvurked as

Senior Prograrnme Olllcer. Global
Drylands lnitiative at thc lnternational
Union lor Conservation ol'Nature. Senior
Programme Offi cer, Drylands Programme
IUCN, Policy Analyst, Infiastructure and

Economic Service Division at the Kenya
Institute of Public Policy Research and

Analysis (KIPPRA) and Project Officer
(Drought and Ernergency) at the
Cornmunity Initiative lracilitation and

Assistance (CIFA) Marsabit. Kenya.

Master of Science (UoN) Postgraduate

Diploma in Actuarial Science (UoN)
Graduate of Advanced Management

Programrne (Strathrnore/Logos/IESE

Spain), B.Ed (Scicnce) (Kenyatta
University)

Mr. Rono has vast experiencc in flnancial
management, Ieadership and change
management. He is currently the Chief
Executive Officer, Pioneer Assurance
Limited.

Master of Business Adm inistration
(Finance), Bachelor of Science. Business

Adrninistration (Finance) (USIU),
Certifled Public Accountanr - CPA (K)
Strathmore College

CPA Muchunku is a Finance and

Accounting Professional sith over 20

l ears Progressive Corporlte erperience.
She has been the Regional Finance and

Adrninistration Manager - Atiica at Water

for People, an International Norfor-profit
Organization, Finance Manager at Kenya

CPA Anne H. Muchunku
Independent Member

D.O.B - 3l't October, 1976

6
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Dr. Chris Kiptoo, CBS

8

l

Prof. Isaac S. Kosgey, Ph.D.,MBS
Vice-Chancellor. Secretary to Council

D.O.B - 5'r,April. l96l

Private Sector Alliance (KEpSA), Senior
Accountant. Financial Rcp,rrting al
Dcacons Kenya Ltd. Financial Accountant
USlt-l - Afiican and Menrbcr ol thc Kenya
Rcvcnue Authorit) (KRA) Tar Agents
(lornnr ittec.

Phl) (Anirnal Sciences). iVI.Sc. Animal
Scicnce ( Wageningen;. ts.Sc Aninral
[)rodLrction, Diplorna in Anirnal
HLrsbandrv (Egcrton). NlllA (Kcn).atla),
Diplorna in [.aw (MKt]). t.t...ll. p(jDp.
Larv (OUT)
Professor Kosgey is a Prof'c,ssor of Animal
Sciences (Animal Breeding and Genetics).
fle has extensive experience in public and
Lrniversity adtninistration and
rnanagentent. having scrvetl irr various
capacities in Laikipia and l]gcrton
t-rnil'crsitics. l)rior to being appointed the
Vice-Chancellor ol Moi [tniversit1,. he
rras the DVC-Adnr in istrat iorr. Finance
and Developrlent at Laikipia lJniversity.
lle has published rr idc,11, and rr on several
reselrch grants. He is I pcer rcr irwcr in
various referecd journals and has

superviscd several M.Sc. und phD

students. He is also a trained ISO 9001
auditor. FIe participates in several
Covernrlent and cornrnun itr letivities.

Ph D frinance (UoN). Master ol Science
(Ag.Econornics) and Bachelor of Science
(Ag. Economics) (Egcrron) fle is an
Accredited fellow in Micro f:corronric and
Financial Managentcnt Instilute of
Easterrr and South A fiica(j\4 F.Ir\4l)

Dr. Chris Kiptoo has also served as the
Principal Secretary M in isrry ot'
Ilnvironrlent and Forestrl and the s(ate

departrrent of Trade. Mirristn, ol'
Industry, tradc and cooperati\ cs.

x l
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PS The National Treasury and Economic
Planning

Dr. Beatrice Inyanglla Nluganda
PS State Deparlment for l{igher Education

and Research, Ministry of Education

He has a rich wealth of expcrience in
econornic policy analvsis. nrainlv gained

at the Central Bank Ol Kenra. Capital
Markcts Authorirl and the lntcrnational
Monetary Fund. where hc scrved in
various capac itie-s.

Ph.D (Athens) B.ed. M.phil in planning
and Economics of EdLrcation (Moi)
She has served in varioLrs capacities in the
Education sector suclr as [)irector of
higher Education at the Partncrship lor
African Social and Governancc Research
(PASGR) and has led Pedagogical
Leadership in Africa (Pedal) project. She
has trained over 1,000 teaching stalf in 60
Universities on the A,iican continenl in
innovative pedagogics. She has
contributed to Ken\,a national policv
docLl]rents such as the McdiLrrn 

.lcrrn

Frarnervork on Education and'fraining for
Vision 2030, and the National Manporver
Survev

9
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Narne of Staff and
Area of Responsibility

Prof. lsaac S. Kosgey
V icc-Chancellor

I'rof. l)ng. Kirimi H.
Kirianriti
Dcprrtr Vicc-Chancel lor.
Athn in islrat ion, Plann ing
& Straresv

Prol'. lsaac N. Kimengi
Dcputr Vicc-Chancellor.
Acadcnrics, Research and
Extcnsion

Prof. 'l'e nge R. Kuremu
Principal. College of
Hcalth Sc icnces

t .ra"

-:H}

4. Ke) Managemenl Team

Qualifications

Plr D. (A n irna I Sciunccs).
M.Sc. Anilnal Sc ie rrce

(Wagcninccn ). Il.Sc
Anirnal l)rod uclion.
Diplorna in Anirrral
llusbandrl, ( Egcrron). M tlA
(Kenyatta). Dip. l_au.

(MKU). l_L.B (OU',l )

[)ost gratlLrate I )iplorna. lNt,
Jbu lousc ( Irrirnce ). Bsc.
Msc, -lechnicul 

t In ivcrsity
ttl'Wroclas. ( Po lrrnd) phD,

Pt:. I,hl) Che rn ical and
Process Inginccring, lNp
'foLrlousc. 

( I:rar:cc)

I].[:d. (Sc.). ]\1.,\ (Ud.)
(Nairobi). Ph.D ( K cn_r'arta)

MBChll. M.Mcd (SLrrg)

(tJoN). M.\4ed ( I)acd iarric
SLrr_u) (Kr azulrr Natal).
IrCS(hCSA )
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C?A Egla C. Samoei
Ag. Chief Finance

Oflicer

BA (Economics) (Nairobi)

CPA (K)

Petrolina C. Chepkrony
Scnior Legal Officer

LL.B. (Moi). Dip (Kenya

School of Law), EMPA
(Moi), LL.M. (Nairobi)

1
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5 (.IIAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Irr the Financial year ended 3Oth Junc. 2023. thc []nivcrsitv's .pcratio.rs and activities ran
srr(Dthly despite the financial challenges which continue to be cipcriencecr dLrc ro declining
Llniversity revenues that is mainly generated internally as Appropriation In Aiti (AIA).'l'hc capitation grants from the covernrnent have rernained io be ttre onli,rcliable revenue
source that is currently sustaining University operations. though inadequate to nlcet rhc current
tJniversity obligations. This has given rise to pending bills ;hich currentl\ srand ar Kes. 6.5
b i llion.
I)uring the year. the university sought the government's support to settre hist.ricar dcbts an<i
lbr llnancial support to undertake staff rightsizing so as to tut on sta|f par ro costs \\,hich
currently takes up over 70oz ofthe entire University recurrent budget. 'rhe Universit' r'iI thus
continue pursuing the support from the governmenl through the p-arcnr Mirristrr.

ln order to address the current financial challenges facing the University and ensurc 6nancial
sustainability, the University continues to institute reforrns and measures ainrcd at cutting on
costs. enhancing revenue performance and ensurinq operational el.ficie,nc1 .

lhe utilization of Universitf idle land through applc larnring and other larrnilq acriviries ro
generate more incorne for the university is picking up. At tirll maturity. this pr..icit is cxpected
lo senerate reliable revenue to the institution and easc the current llnancial bLriden. 'l-he apple
larming currenlly covers r00 (one hundred) acres,nd prans are underrvar to pr.gressivery
incrcase lhe acreage to 200 in the next two vears. 'r'he Llniversity arso .,intin,i",, in .ngug"
othcrpotential partnerssoastourilizeitsidlclandrotiivr'rsil; into other potential colrrnerciaI
crops that include Avocado, Tea and coflee farrning and other thrnring acti'itics tor rnore
levenue generalion.
l'lrrough the'Mama is doing good' project. the Universitv has reccivctl trec seccllinss and has
already been planted to support the governnrenl.s prcr.jeci

These efforts are being undertaken in a bid not only to diversify revenue but contrihute to the
nati-onal objective of providing food security and community empo*erment. In doing so, the
University shall continue to develop other strategies of optirnally using available rcso-urces to
gcnerate more revenue and create linkages with partners that shall contrihrrtc to inrproving
lacilities of the institution.
Ihe University has signed Mern.randa of IJnderstantling and [rinanciar \,rcrroranda of
Iinderstanding rvith various institLrtions intendcd to facilitate allcooperative initiatives in the
areas of instruction, research. cooperative projects. and staft. faculty. and st.dcnt rnobility.

Thc University has enhanced its visibility in sel,eral areas sucl.r as lnriLrstn.Innovation. and
Ilducation and very irnportant15, in AgricLrlture. through parricipation in the national
agricultural shows and other exhibitions to pronrotc its relevance and attract llotcnlial investors
lo panner logether for optimal use of its resources. rn doing so. the Lrni\ersitl prans to
cotntnercialize sorne of its innovations emanating fiorn acadernic and rcscarch aitivities in
partnership with Kenya National Innovation Agency (KNEA)
"['he. university through its Directorate ofResource Mobilization, Enterprise Devcropment and
Institutional Advancement (RMEDIA) continues to explore other sources of incorne for
generation and mobilization ofresources from rrithin and outside the Universitr,.
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The Alumni ofthe University who are largely spread within and outside the country are also
being mobilized by the University. A committee on resources mobilization has been
established to among other things, identify Alumni champions with a view to engaging them
to participate and support the University and reach out to their friends and partners.

The University has also established the Centre lor Strategic leadership Development (CSLD)
for purpose of Income generation through offering short courses on leadership and govemance
to our leaders in the National and County govemment, other Institutions, Non-Covemmental
Organisation among others. The Centre also offers courses on Enterprise Development and
mentorship on business sta(-ups and Research.

The University will continue engaging other Govemment Agencies charged with the
responsibility of promoting ethical standards to improve and strengthen efficiency and
effectiveness in service delivery.

On behalf f the University Council, I would like to thank the Govemment for continued
support to the University through recurrent and capital development grants as well as our
development partners.
I appreciate the University Managemenl, Staffand Students for their tireless effo(s in enabling
the University meet its core mandate olteaching, research and community outreach.

Dr. Dr, Humphrey Kimani Njuguna, Ph.D, Law, Ph.D. Entrep
Chairman oi Council,
Moi University.
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6. REPORT OFTHE VICE CHANCELLOR

It is with great pleasure that I present this report for the t'inancial year ended 30'h June 2023

The year was fairly marked by a good working environment following normal resumption of
economic activities in the country that led to tull resumption of normal operations in the University
after the effects ofthe Covid-19 pandemic. The University's academic and operational activities ran

smoothly. There was one graduation ceremony held during the year that saw more than four thousand

students graduate and enter into the market.

Despite the negative eflects of the Covid-19 pandemic that had a negative impact to University

operations, the University continues to grow in Infrastructural Development with the support of the

Govemment and other development partners.

However, the recurrent capitation from the Government has been declining due to a decline in both

the number of Govemment and sell-sponsored students enrolled in the University each year following
the change in govemment policy to admit all students qualifying to join University to both Public and

Private Universities.

It is our appeal to the Covemment to review funding for the on-going students under the Differentiated

Cost Unit Model (DUC) due to the rising costs involved to maintain the students in the University,

that can't be meet by the declining exchequer grants.

Further, the govemment should allocate adequate financial resources to the on-going and stalled

projects cunently being implemented in the University, due to strain on the existing facilities

following closure ofother campuses by the University and termination ofleased lacilities so as to cul

on costs.

In order to address the financial challenges, the University has redefined its path progressively

towards modemisation and digitization of its operations, processes and academic programmes so as

to utilize the avaitable resources and ensure efficiency in service delivery. The University has

allocated adequate financial resources lo improve on the ICT lnfrastructure and equip the IODeL for

digital leaming and operations so as to cut on costs as well increase revenues through Increased

students enrolments. Fu(her, the University is exploring many avenues and engaging in negotiations

with Potential Partners in an effo( to make use of its ldle Assets to generate more revenue to the

Institution.

Review of the University's Governing Structures and policies.

The University is reviewing its processes and policies to align to the reviewed University statutes, and

has implemented the new govemance structures for clarity and ease ofdecision making and to ensure

effectiveness and efficiency in decision-making.

The University recognizes the impo(ance of policies in the day-to-day running of operations.

Consequently, the University Management Board and Council in the last one (l) year has developed
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key policies and reviewed existing ones in line with The Constitution ofKenya and relevant laws and

regulations.

Resource Mobilization

The University has embarked on an ambitious plan to make use of its vast land by starting the Apple
Farming Project. The plan has seen hundred acres of land put on this project and it's envisaged to

reach five hundred acres in the next two to three years. This project is expected to generate revenue

for fte University and also achieve the University's efforts in empowering and assisting the

neighbouring communities by giving them access to Apple seedlings and improved technology and

value addition in Apple farming.

To increase the resource base of the University, efforts have been made on commercialization of
research proposals for grants and projects. There are a raft of measures to improve the sustainability
of Income Generating Units (lGUs) such as the establishment of a Directorate of Resource

Mobilization, Enterprise Development and Institutional Advancement (RMEDIA) to focus on IGUs
and mobilization of resources for the University and establishment of Advisory Committee to oversee

their operations. In addition the University continues to collaborate with other Universities and

Institution to widen research grants to the inslitution.

Currently the University has few running research project, notable of these is the World Bank
supported project (ACEII-PTRE) that has been running for the last five years. The funds received
from this Project have reached Kshs.740 Million and also teaching and operational facilities have

been greatly improved. There are also other partnerships Centres of Excellence that have directed
their resources to the University and enhanced the much needed support.

Staff and Students' Welfare

The University continues to provide a conducive working environment for our staff and comfortable
facilities for our student. A number of student hostels have been renovated to improve and provide
comfort and security to the students and in addition the University continues to provide new facilities
to ensure that staff and students' welfare is enhanced. The University continues to promote a

harmonious working relationship with the sunounding communities to provide a cohesive business
environment; comfort and security to our students also enjoy reciprocal business exchanges.

The University is currently building a new ultra-modem Amphitheatre that will provide the staff and
students iacilities to showcase their talents apart from providing teaching and recreational space.

Further, the University is engaging with Alumni to explore possibilities ol resource mobilization as

well as seeking support for needy students in terms of scholarships
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Financial Performance

Like all other Universities in the Country, the University is facing challenges arising from budgetary

deficits and low cash flow due to a decline in the numbers ofstudents and other extemal f'actors. The

Differentiated Unit Cost (DUC) model currently being implemented by the govemment in

determining the Capitation grants allocation to the University is increasingly not able to meet the

rising costs of operations within the University. As a result, the University continues to accumulate

pending bills due to its inability to meet its obligations. Revenue collection from A-l-A has been

dropping each year because of change ofpolicy by the Govemment on admission and support of all

the students qualifying to join the Universities.

The University has put in place measures ol harmonization and rationalization of academic

programmes, courses, merger of Schools and Departments and other tum-around cost reduction

strategies in an effort to return to positive perlbrmance.

Appreciation

The University appreciates the suppo( ofthe Govemment in providing financial support in form of
recurrent and capital grants. This suppo( has gone a long way in helping the University in achieving

its goals and mandate.

I would also like to appreciate the support and advice of the University Council, Management Board

as well as our dedicated staffand students.

PROF. ISAAC S. KOSGEV, Ph.D., MBS

VICE-CHAN F],LLOR

't
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7' Sratement ofPerformance against predetermined objectives F or Fy 2022t23
Section 8l subsection 2 (f) of the pubric Finance Management Acr, zor2 requires the accounting
officer to include in the financial statements, 

" 
.,"tar"n, of the nationar government University's

performance against predetermined objectives.

Moi University has nine strategic pillars and objectives within its Strategic plan forthe Fy 2015/2016-
202012021. These strategic pillars are as follows:

#ei

ffi ,:t
,!

i 1.rGr
ft;

I)ilhrr l: Dcliicr., {).lsrunding rrrrcr ir,.ratir c cJrrcatiorrar clpcr.icrrce an(r c()ndrctout\liut('lini: re\eilr(lt ll(l creulire rr,rrk lirr thc prrlrlic urrotl.

I'illar i
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l'rllar 5:
\r stenrs
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l'illar 6:
\cr\ ice S
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l'i I lltr' {l: \t len,:tlr. rr rr,l lrr.,,lrl. rr

tc'pr,nribiirLr

,'\ \ r t..lJr\ \. ..,, t,,.t.tl(. rtI t;.. Irr,.I .,,rl,,.t Jl\. .,,!iitl

Pillan9: Cltatc an cntrcprctrc rrrin l scr'ices unit lbr linancitl grol! th and sustai
of thc f]nivelsit,.

The University develops its annual work plans based on the above nine pillars. Assessment of the
Board's performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The university
achieved its performance targets set for the FY 2022t2023 period for its nine strategic pillars, as
indicated in the diagram below:

Pillar I l. Develop innovative
academic programmes

and review for
relevance,

marketability and
comgrtiti veness

2. Strengthen research

linkages and

collaborations

-New
pfogrammes

-Number of
academic

programmes

revicwed during
the year

-lncrease in
number of
linkages and

collaborations

-Review of
academic
programmes as Per
CUE requircments

-Negotiate

conclude

agreements

parlners

collaborating
institutions

and

with
and

Six acadernic
proSrammes were
reviewed during the
year and two
internationally
programmes were
Accredited.

The University
achieved eight new
linkages and
collaborations
during the year

Pillar 2 Efficient and prudent

use of human and
financial resources

Percentage

absorption of
allocated GoK
funds

The University to
absorb the funds
allocated to it by
GoK

The University
absorbed 100/o of
the funds allocated
by CoK

Pillar 3 To attact intemational
studenb and promote

exchange

Percentage

incrcase in
number of new
intemational

students

Improve/intensi!
messaging

prospective

intemational
students

for
The University
achieved an

increase of20%
intemational

students compared

to the previous

year,
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Accreditation of
curricula has

enhanced

visibility,
nationally,
regionally and

intemationally
Pillar 4 To acquire, develop

and maintain quality
facilities and
equipment

Construction of
tuition and

residential

facilities

Renovation of
Hostels at Main
Campus

Construction of
Amphitheatre and
the main gate

Construction ofCHS
Laboratory

The completion
level was at l00olo

against a target of
95o/o.

Pillar 5 To continually
implemen! monitor
and evaluate quality
assurance and
performance

management systems

Enhance

implementation

of QMS ISO
9001 :2015

Institutionalize
performance

contracting

Carried out internal
qMlity audit.
implemented the
corcctive action
plan

Undertook the I't
surveillance audit

Initiated the process

of the 8d edition

QMS

The University
implemenled a

corrective action
plan leading to
service delivery

Identified the gaps

in the corc mandate

leading to impmved

customer

satisfaction.

Developed the
202?t2023

Performance

contracl under the
l9ih cycle PC

guidelines.

Achieved 3.0056
compositc score for
the last evaluated
Performance

Contract
Pillar 6 Cr€ate awareness and

build the e-capacity of
the Univenity
community

Increase in
number of MU
Scholar Profile
for online

Increase the number
of MU Scholar
Profiles from 205 to
400

The number was
increased to 400
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Pillar'7

Pillar 9

8. Corporate Governance Statement

corporate governance comprises rules, procedures, regurations and processes through rvhich the
University is directed. The University is commifted to the highest standards olcorporare, govcrnance
and ethics Good corporate governance practices are therefore essential ro rhe deliverl of'long term
sustainability of the University.

Ownership

The Un iversity was established under the Moi University Act in I 984 as the second public Un iversity
in Kenya. The University is a body corporate established under the Moi Universitv Charter 2013. It
is headed by the vice-Chancellor and Secretary to lhe University Council. who is responsible for
impl,nentation ofthc counciIs poricy decisions and da1-to-day operations oIthc []niversirv.

Marking/ Labelling
ofall assets

Workshops/trainings

to sensitize staff and

students on security
and safety

I he U n ivcrsity
sensitizcd both srafF

and sludents on

security and safety.

The University
coordinated with
the County Security
-l earn to conduct
secrrlill

ass!.ssr)enls at its

carlrpuses

presence and
v isibility

To ensure all stafT.

students and

University assets are

safe and secure

Sensitization of
staff and
students on

security and

safety measures

Pillar 8 Sustain good
governance for
effective performance

and service deliverv

Reviewed

University
Statutes

Undertake review of
the statutes and have
them approved by
the Universily
Senate and Council

The Slatutes were

revie\.r'ed and
appror ed during the

\,ear

To encourage

exploitation of
potential business

opportunities

lncrease in MU
revenue

generated

through

business

activities

Assembly

co,npuler and

related products

of
IT

The Un iversity has

successli-rlly

assembled

computers ready for
the market.

'Ihe apples has

liuiled ready lor
hlrvcst in a month
t irne.
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Constitution, Appointment and Retirement of Membcrs of Council
'lhe Cotrncil consists on n ine persons appointed by the Cahrnet Secrctary in charse pl'lldlcation. 'fhe
rnenrbcrship of the Council is as tbllos,s:

1i) Ihe Chairperson
(ii) The Principal Secretary in charge of University Education
(iii) The Principal Secretary in charge of 'l'he Narional Treasury
(iv) Five persons appointed by the Cabinet secretary through an open and competitive process
(v) The V ice-Chancellor, who is an ex-oflicio nrentber ol'the Council

NervlY appointed members of Council are lacilitated to undcfgo an induction process covering the
business ol the University'by availing relevant infbrmation and also taking tlrell throlsll structured
ind Lrct iorr train ing.

The mctnbers ofCouncil retire at the expiry oftheir tcrnr ol appointment or uhcn appointecl to other
offices that could bring a conflict of interesr.

The Unirersity Charter and the Universities Act No 42 ol'2012. Moi UniversitY has esrahlished the
lbllorr inl ( 

'r[ans ofgovernance:-

. Ihe Council

. I he Senate

. Moi University Management Board

The University has continued to implement effective corporate governance by errsLrring tinrely and
relevant disclosures as provided in the Public Finance Management (PFM) Act 201 2. ensLrring strong
audil procedures and audit independence. having clearly delined Council and Managcnrent duties and
responsibilities and ensuring compliance with relevant larvs and ensuring thc hiehest levels of
intcgrirr trr all lerels in the Universitv

Council (lhartcr

The ( harter of the Council is crucial to the Universilr"s r.lo\ cnrirnce and deflnes the (loLrncil's roles
and responsibilities as wellas tunctions and structures in a \\'av that supports thc nrcnrbers in carrying
out thcir strategic oversight function. 'lhe charter provides uLridance on the lbllorr ins:

- 'lhc separation of the roles. functions, responsibilities and porvers ol'the Colncil and its
ind iv idual members

- Nornination, appointment, induction. on-going training and performance cvaluation of the
Counci I and its comrniftees

- Policies and practices of Council on corporatc governance matters. Cguncil menrbers'
declarations and conflict of interest, conduct ofCouncil and Council cornnrittec rrectin_rts

- I'orvers delegated to Council conrmittees as well as rlratters reserved fbr linal r.Jccision rnaling
and approval by the Council
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Council Size, Composition and Appointments

The constitution ofCouncil is stipulated in the University Charter and the Universities Act No. l2 ol
2012. The university Council is headed by the Chairman and is composed of Nine [9] members
inclusive ofthe Vice-Chancellor who is the only executive member. The constitution ofthe Council
takes into consideration requirements of the education sector, diversity of skills. academic
qualifications' gender' age and experience necessary to add value to the operations ofthe University.
Roles and Responsibilities of the Council

The roles and functions of the board are clearly defined and include giving the overall oversighr of
Management and giving the strategic direction ofthe University. The Council defines the University,s
strategies. objectives, values and ensures thal procedures and practices are put in prace to ensure
effective control over strategic, financial. operational and compliance issues. The Council develops
short and long term goals of the University, develops strategies to achieve those goals and monitors
the performance ofthe University against the set goals. The Council also spearheads the prepararion
of financial statements and reports of the University, approves and reviews annuar budgets and
ensures that the University has adequate systems of internal controts rogether wirh apfropriate
monitoring of compliance activities to ensure business continuity.

while the council sets the direction and general guidance on policy, the day to day running ofthe
University has been delegated to the Vice Chancellor. However, the Councit is reiponsible for the
stewardship ofthe University and assumes responsibility for the effective control ofthe University.

The Council has unrestricted access to timely and relevant information as well as advice and services
ofthe Corporation Secretary to discharge its duties effectively. They operate in compliance with the
Mwongozo code ofconduct that offers corporate governance framework for all state corporations and
the menrbers ofCouncil have duly undergone training under this code.

Council Meetings

The Council prepares an annual Almanac showing the schedule of their meetings planned lor each
year. Dtrring lhe year, the University Council held regular quarterly meetings, while special meetings
were called when necessary.

12.07.22

18.07.22

t8.07.22

t9.07.22
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19.12.22

20.t2.22

22.12.22
)1 t) 1'>

12.0t.23

25.01.23

14.02.23

28.02.23

03.03.23

05.03.23

t?.04.23

t3.04.23

t5.06.21

22.06.23

23.06.23

27.06.23

Council Committees

The Council Members are appointed to various Council Conrrrittees, and hencc. bring their diverse
experiences in deliberations during Council meetings. The Council Committees have well defined
terms ol reference that are intended to facilitate efficient decision making by thc Council in
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discharging its duties and responsibilities. The Council Committees and therr [unctions are as
indicated below.

The University has an Audit, Risk and compliance Committee as required by law. The council in
appointing the members of this committee has ensured that at least one member of the cornmittee has
relevant qualifications and expertise in audit, financial management, or accounting with experience
in public service and knowledge in risk management and is a member ofa professional bod1, in good
stand ing.

ic, rch, Extension srd
entE' mmittee

To assist the Vice Chancellor in enhancing

internal controls in order to improve efficiency,

transparency and accountability.

To review audit issues raised by both internal

and external auditors.

To provide guidelines

research activities

To research set priorities and targets for research

activities in the University

on University wide

To resolve unsettled and unimplemented Public

lnvestment Committee's (P.l.C)

recornrnendations

To receive, consider and recornmend to Council
award of honorary degrees

To enhance communication between

management, intemal and external audit and to

foster an effective audit function

To provide guidelines on

train ing
Un iversity wide

To explore ways of raising funds for the
University both internally and externally

To recornmend to Council the appointment of
suitable candidate(s) after considering all the
requirements for the post or in case of there
being no suitable candidates to recomrnend re-
advertisement of the position

To develop appropriate and conducive policies
to guide and promote resource mobilization
and income generation activities in the
U niversit

To recommend to Council improvements in the
job grading classifications as the Committee
may consider appropriate.

To rnonitor and evaluate income generation
and

resource mobilization activities in the
Un iversit

To revierv and make recornmendations to
Council on Terms and Conditions of Service as
and rvhen necessary or when directed to do so
by Council from time to time.
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To develop polici
( lncorne Cenerat

thc

es on utilization of resources
ion) fbr the developrncnt of

ess ofthe Un iversit

o exanrine and rnake recornnr!,ndarions i;-('ouncilon salaries, terrns alrd condilir.rns of
service lbr all tJniversitv enrplor ccs.

1'

Iore brrsin v
Council Boartls

Council Appeals Board

Tlre ntal:date of this board is to consider appeals fronr rllcnrbcrs of stafi'and rnake rcconrrnendationsto Courrc il.

Conflict 0f intcrest

Council Members are obligated to disclose to the council any real or potential conflict ol interestwhich comcs to the Councir Member's allention, whether direct or indirect. The councir has a conflictof interest register and at every meeting. rnembers are required to declare any conf.iict .t.intcrest rvithrcgard t0 tl)e tna(ters undcr discussion.

f,lhics antl code of conducl

The co'ncil rnembers and enrproyees olthe Universitl- are crpected to act \r ith honest\. irrrcgritv andfairness in all their dealings with one another and *ith a staretrolaers and kr rcspcct thc diversJculttrres o1'all people The University has a code ofconduct that binds evc^ c.rrncil rncrnberandenrplo-r e c.

Procu rernen t policies

The University has in place procurement policies in line rvith the public procurenrent and AssetDisposal Act, 201 5 that promote fair and transparent procuretnent processcs.

9. lVlanagement Discussion antl Analysis

i). [Jniver.silv acattemic and operational performance

During the year under revierv, the Universitl, operations and activities ran srnoothly and all theAcadenric programmes and adivities \vent on as pranncd. despire ,n. lrrlr.l,,i'. ,.iil,,*.. ,rn,.ncontinrlc to be experienced due to declining revenues both the capitation grants li.r, tlrc sovernrnentand the A-l-A that is generated internaflr,by the Universitl.. There were a re\v studcnts on canrpus asmost c()l10r1s of studenls proceeded for fierd attachnrent and r.ng horidal.s. As a rcsLrrt, revenuecollcction liom students was very lorv rnaking it a challengc fbr the t.lniversitv lo |lleet its llnancialobligations to the creditors due to cash flo* challenges.

Due to tcw numbers of students rvho quarified to graduate in quarter three and f'our, it was noteconorricarry viabre to hord another graduation in the rnonth orJune, 2023 as conrpared to previousyears.
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The capitation grants from the Govemment, though inadequate is the main reliable source sf revenue
that is currently sustaining university operations, rargery lbr meeting staff payroI costs. other
University operations highly depend on the intemally generared funds which are insufflcient due to
limited sources and non-achievement on set revenue coIection targets. For this rcason, the
University's pending bills continue growing and the arnount norv stands at Kes.6.5 billion as at l0th
June.2023.

'lhe Uni'ersity has continued to engage the governrrent tbr financiar supporr to bc abre k) pay the
historical pending bills and for seed money/capital to revamp sonre of its Inconre gcncrating pro.l"cts
and undertake other new potential projects for rnore revenue generation, especialll rhose thaisuppons
the government's'BETA'agenda- food security, accommodation. health. snrall and rnicr6 enterprise
and d igital transformation.

Further. thc tlniversity Management has rnade efforts to address financial challenges currently
facing the Lrniversity so as to ensure financial sustainability ofthe universitl,. 1'he tJniversitl
Managenlent has tasked various adhoc cornmittees with clear Terms of Refercnces. to corne up rvith
slrategies and recommendations geared towards increasing internally generated rcvenucs, .ut,ing on
both stalrand operational costs, mitigation ofpossibre potentiar risks, and ensure operational
efficiency and optimal use of University Assets. The University also continues ro institure other
refonns and measures aimed at cutting on costs and enhancing revenue performance.

To address staffpayroll costs which takes up over 70% ofthe entire universitv recurrent budget, the
University sought the government's financiar support both in rvritten and through the proposed
budget lbr 2023/2024 financial year ro be able ro underrake statl right sizing.

During the year however, the universitv spend less on stalfpayroll costs as cornparecl to thc previous
financ ia I vear due to exit of a nurrber of stalf in June, 2022. During the fi nancial year 2022/2023, I 3
Lecturcrs rvere appointed and 86 staffretired (10 acadernic srafland 76 non-T'eaching). 5l staffs also
exited the university through resignation, death, forfeiture and tenrrination ofcontract.

There u as however a slight increase on payroll due to a nunrber ol staff rvho rvere
protnoled/reviewed or replaced and the new National Social Security Funds (NSSF) rates rhat were
implenrcnt on payroll with elfect from February.2023

The University attention is now focused on anbitious and key plans to utilize its vast land by
expanding the area under the Apple crop and grow other commercial crops- Avocado. 'l'ea and coffee
as rvell as improving on the other existing agricultural activities in order to increase and diversify the
Universitv's revenue base and support thc government's Agentla in contributing to lhs national food
securitr and community empowerment.

The ( In ivcrsit)' has continued to engage in negotiations fbr partnersh ip with potent ial partners in order
to actLralize this dream. rhe envisaged diversiljcation on universitl,'s land use through thc apple
farrning and other related and planned aclivities is expected to generate more revenue to ease the
financial burden and challenges being experienced by the LJniversitl,.
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The Apple farm currently covers 80 acres and prans are underway to progressivell. increase the
acreagc to 200 acres in the nexl two years. The Universitv has transplanted an arjditional 10.000
seedlings to replace dried up apple crops and fill up the collapsed roads rvirhin the apple I'arm.
Installati.n ofcl steel pipes is on-going to ensure constirnr supply of plenty uatcr to the apple plants
as 5070 ol'the apple plants have flowered and is fiuiting. Some fiuits have started maruring-

The university will continue to engage the National lrrigation Authority. Ministrl ot rvater and
sanitation among other stakeholders to ensure that there is sufficient water to the apple fhrrn so as to
produce quality fruits.

During the year, the University through the Centre for Strategic leadership Dcveloprnenr (CSLD),
undertook leadership training for all the Deans, Associatc Deans. Directors, Chairs ofdepartrnents
and Heads of various sections in the University.

The University strives to enhance its visibility in several areas such as Industry, Innovation, Education
and ver!, importantly in Agriculture, through its website. participation in exhibitions to promore irs
relevance and attract potential investors to partner together for optimal use of its Assets and resources.
ln doing so the University plans to commercialize some of its innovations emanating from academic
and research activities in partnership with the Kenya National Innovation Agenc) (KNEA)

The Directorate of Resource Mobilization. Enterprise Development and Institutional Advancement
(RMEDIA)' continues to explore other avenues of increasing Income generating activities and
mobilizing resources from within and outside the Universit),.

The Directorate is mobilizing potential income generating units to write business plans that will be
prescnted.to University Management and Council for consideration and approval in view ol'securing
funds for irrplementation.

The Directorate has also introduced an apiary with 5 beehives already installed and the process is on-
going to install more around the apple farrl.

The University through its Alumni who are largely spread rvithin and outside the country are also
being.contacted through identified champions in view of engaging them to assist the University in
mobilizing resources. Plans are underway to conduct a get togithei dinner with the Universitv staff
Alumni before conducting a major dinner/a fundraiser rvith thi external Alurnni, rvhich rvillenhance
the resources through establishment of the Endowment fund. A Draft Endorvment Fund policy has
been developed and is at various stages ofapprovals.
This etkrrt ofengaging the alumni will not only diversil\,resources but contribute lo thr lniversity's
deliverr ol service. The University rvill continue to develop other strategies ol'optirnally using
available rcsources to generate revenue and create linkages with partners that shall contribute ro
enhancing fhcilities ofthe institution as well as intensifying outreach aclivities.

The university conlinues to engage both internal and external stakeholders to ensure that operations
and activities run smoothly and that there is flow of goods and services to thcilitate academic
activities
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The University will also continue engaging other Covernment Agencies charged with the
responsr

ln servrc

bility of promoting ethical standards to improve and strengthen efficiency and elfectiveness
e delivery

Going tbrward, the University shall continue engaging the National rreasury and planning through
the Ministry of Education on its reform initiatives and financial support to be able to sustain ils
operations in supporting the core mandate ofthe lnstitution.

Academic matters

During the year, the University held one graduation ceremon), in the monrh of December 2022 where
a total of4,674 students graduated in the lollowing Schools:

School PhD Clinical
Fellowship

Masters PCDs Bachelo Diploma Total

Agricu lture and Natural
Resources

rs

0

7

55

0

22

t4

6

0

37

4

t6

I

.,

0

0

l6s

t54

154

794

t5

1265

r78

276

74

93

46

32

2tl

58

42

0

4,319

159

r59

947

0 0

0

0

0

4

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Arts and Social Sciences

Business & Economics

Dentistry

Education

Engincering

Infbrrration Sc iences

Larv

Medicine

N ursing

Public Health

Science and Aerospace Studies

Tourism, Hospitality & Events
Management

Bomet Un iversity College

Ahrpc t.ln iversity College

'I'olal

24

0

t5

I

2

0

I

0

0

6

0

0

ll

64

4

74

0

r2

0

3

0

0

0

0

0

5

I

i)

t5

l3 r8

193

287

74

r39

50

48

3

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

8

0

0

0

0

0

0

8

2t8

69

44

00

5 I tJ 4,674
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Financial I,erformance

The University recorded a sright drop in performance as corrpared to the same period in the rastfinancial vear. The Recurrent capitation received during the 1:ear rvas Kes 4.17[i.099.000 compared
to Kes 4.167,5 I3,000, an increase of Kes 10,5g6,000.
The amount received for capitar Deveropment was Kes 20.000.000 as compared to Ke,s 10.000,000
that u'as received in the previous year.

The University's total revenue target for the period ending 30,r, June, 2023 was Kcs. 6.g r 5.2g0,605
but the actual revenue that was co ected was Kes.4,g35,974,0 r0, thus giving a negative variance of
Kes. 2,079,306,595 (an adverse variance of 300lo).

The target revenue from Internafly generated funds (AIA) for rhe period up to 30th June. 2023 was
Kes. 3,477.000,002 but the acruar revenue co[ected during the peiiod was Kes r,397,693.407. Thisfell bef ow.the target amount by 53% (Kes 2,079,306,595)
The negative drop in internally generated revenues rvas as a r.'sult of low enrolmenr ol'students
during the vear and the severar cohorts. of the continuing students who were o.t ot'"a,npL,s un'-
anachnrent. field practise and long holidays.
ln addition. the research funds were also not received as expected and the activities or production
from most of'the lncome Cenerating units rvas very lorv.
The University had a deficit of Kes. 9s_:.6:+,000 ior the year ending 30 June. 2021 as cor,pared to adeficit of'Kes. 699,r28,000 in the rast financiar year. The increase in deficit was as a resurt ofanoverall drop in revenue.
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Consolidated Income and expenditure for the last five financial years is as below;

Financial Year

The breakdown ofthe incomes for the four years is shown below:

Recurrent Capitation MU

FY 2022t23 FY 202t/22 FY 2020t2r FY 2019t20

3,43 8,281 3,442,733 3,23 8,832

I 4 9..15 5

3.224,704
Recurrent Capitation
ACEII
Recurrcnt Capitation
Rivatc\
Recurrent Capitation
USAID

24,054 t.10.70 I

781.079

29.571

813.542

CBA arrears
9t7,047

'l'otal Recurrent
Ca it a tion

4,275,877 4,J67,513 3,417,761

A-l-A-Moi t,9 t9, t90 2,t99,696 I .487 -7 82 3.4'77 -286
Rivatex Loss (2e3,074) (234.170)

7,719,037
Tolal Income 6,004215 6,333,007 4,905,543

The Unirersity's net revenue during the year was Kes 6.004.2r5.000 against an expenditure ofKes
6.9-s2.779,699. rhus, having a deficit of Kes 953,634.000.

The increase in the overarr deficit is as a resurt ofa drop in rnternaly generated revenues (A-r-A) thar
was collected by the University during the period, due to a drop in students enro6enr during the year
and the several cohorts of students who were away on teaching practise and fierd industriar
attachmenls The recurrent capitation that was also received during the year was Iess as cornpared to
that ofthe previous year and the increase in the Rivatex gross loss that was incurred during the period
under review further affected the performance.

202212023

*Income (Kes'000) Expenditure (Kes'000)

6.004.2 t 5 6.95s.873
2021 t2022

2020/202t

6,333.007 6.971.330

5,880.07 |4.905.543

20lg/2020 7,719,037 8,543.6 r9
20 r 8/20 t9 6, r84,006 6,5 I r.00-s
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Implementation of Key Infrastructural Projecls

The University is currently implementing the following key inliastructure projects that uere approved
in the capital Development Budget for Fy 202212023. The projects are expected ro improve rhe
learning atmosphere in the University. and therefore. improve the quality of teaching. The projects
inc lude:

a) Construction of Auditoriurn and Amphitheatre

b) Renovation of Hostel J

c) Construction of ACEII PTRE Building.

d) Construction of Digital Innovation Centre.

e) Construction of Human Anatomy Laboratory

f) Main Cate

Major Risks of the University

The University's activities are exposed to a number ofrisks thar include credit risk. liqLrirlity risk and
market risks.

The crctlit risk emanaling from trade receivables (students' fces) is managed b1, ensuring that studcnts
pay thc requisite fees at the time of registration and signing of nominal rolls ancj also bclbre sitting
for their cxaminations. The University has set up systems and controls to ensure that we rninimize
risks.

Liquidity risk emanates from the University's challenges in nreeting its obligations as and rr hen there
are due. '[he University is managing this risk by continuously reviewing its cash florr forecasts and
agreeing on acceptable paytnent plans with creditors in order to meet the shortfall. -l'he University is
seeking linancial suPport from the government to mitigate cash flow challenges as this has led to
increased litigations and threatened executions.

The University is facing a risk from the reduction in the number of privately sponsored students
admitted to the University. The University is dealing with this risk through rigorous marketing of
PSSP programmes and through The Directorate of Resource Mobilization, Enterprise Development
and Institutional Advancement (RMEDIA), that continues to explore other avenues of increasing
income generating activities and mobilizing resources from within and ourside thc University
vigoroLrs marketing of PSSP programmes. There is rene*.ed fbcus on admissions of post graduate
students. whose numbers are not affected by the government policy on admission o I' ne\\, students.

In addition to the above risks, the University is also facing risks in its business continuitv plan caused
by changes in the operating environment and changes in policies affecting the higher education sector
like the change of University funding Model that takes ellect lronr September 2023. These could lead
to suppl)' chain interruptions at the initial stages of itnp lernentation.
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Material Arrears in Statutory/ Financial Obligation

The University has arrears in Pension and Provident Fund contributions, SACCos. welthres and Bank
loan dcductions amounting to Kes.5,000,20g.200 and the University has been in roucrr rvith the
Ministrr ot'Education and rhe Nationar rreasury to suppon in crearing the pending bi[.
'fhe Urrivcrsily's Financial probitv and Serious Governance lssues

There were no reported financial improbity issues by both intcrnal and external parties. 1'he University
has put in place governance structures in place to ensure that an) exposures are addresscl pronrptll,.

10. Environmental and Sustainability Reporling

The University continues to focus on programmes that are of material importance lo our students and
various stakeholders, including the covernment and industry. 'l'he University is cornrnitred to building
a more sustainable future, despite the challenges and resource constraints that arc currently being
expericrrced by publ ic universities.

In this report we indicate the strategic efforts that the University is engaging in to achieve
sustainahilitl, in its operations and business rrodel.

i) Sustainability strategy and profile

The Year under review has been fairly favourable to the Univcrsiry. The sustainabilitr cllbrts ofthe
Universit-v during the year were aimed at keeping the University afloat. despitc the chalenging
operating environment. In this regard the University diversitled its operations in 6rder to raise and
increase its revenue base by investing on apple farming \\hich is anticipated to earn thc tJniversity
considcrable income that shall support the University budget and reduce reriancc fr.rn the
Covernrncnt and donors. In addition the University shallcontinue liaising with Governnrent and other
interes(ed parties for contracts especially in the development and assembly oldigital devices in the
MU Assembly Plant in Eldoret. We are confident that these efforts rvill enablc the University to
continue delivering on its mandate.

The University has instituted measures to ensure effectiveness and efficiency in service delivery and
cost nlanagelnent strategies by harmonizing and rationalising academic programlnes, courses/units,
departrnents, staff, facilities and other University operations. In the rast two ),ear. thc t-lniversity
consolidated and merged common prograrnmes, closed and disposed non-stratesic ccltrcs. increased
restlurcc tnobilization efforts rvith the airn at reducing operational costs and sealing rlaste streams. To
mitigate teaching space requirements, the tJniversity is developing requisite inlrastnrcture. including
laboratories to improve on quality delivery'ofacadernic prograrnmes. The next phasc is rationalization
ofnon-teaching staff to ensure optirrization oftheir nurrbers. skiIs and cornpeter]cies.

To increase the resource base ofthe University, the Universit-v has started nrid-tcrrn Apple Farrning
project \\'hich now stands aI 80 acres in the year under review.'rhe project at i(s nraturit), is expected
to Provide the University with funds that wilt enable the University to discharge sonre ofthe liabilities
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that are currently choking the institution's operations. The University is also engaging in negotiationswith potential partners to establish Avocado, coffee and tea farming ro make use ol.its ldle land togenerate tnore revenue.

In addition' the University has opened doors for other national and international donors and alumni
to join hands together to improve on the quality of research and other academic exchanges that will
see the University funded.

'l'he University has secured a number of well-funded projects, including Atiica clhrsters centres(ACl6; ;n Phytochemicals, Textile and Energy - ACE-ll. Atiica Centre of Excellence in Afiica'
studies. Incubation centre, Digitar Literacy programme (Dt-p) phase Iand H. HEpSSA project,
ASALI t')roject, among others. There are a raft of measures to improve the sustainabilitv of Income
Generating units (lGUs) through the establishment of a Directorate of Resource Jouiriru,i*.
Enterprise Development and Institutionar Advancernent (RMEDIA) to focus .n IGtJs and
mobilization of resources forthe university and establishrnent ofan Advisory corrrrnilee lo oversee
their operations.

ii) Environmentalperformance

The university embraces environmental safety in its operations and has in place policies for handling
e-waste. managing other waste generated in the University and ensuring thai all our operations
conforln to best practices to reduce any negative impacts on thc environment. Rivatex ll. A. Ltd.. in
consultation with global design houses in the Export Processing Zone, is in the proccss 6l'rnodernizing
the f'actorv's effluent treatnlent plant to meet the stantlards required under lhe Aliican crorvth and
Opponunity Act for textile exports to the United States market.

The company has adopted greener production processes that protect the environment and lninirrizes
damage to the environment. The University believes that this rvill irnmensely contribute to and sustain
our future success.

iii) Employee welfare

The University provides equar opportunity inespective ofgender to aI the appricants who are seekingfor employment opportunity in the University. This Employment criterion is contained in the
University Human Resource Manuar which provides guiderines on hiring and exiting the ernproyrnent,
and this nranual has been incorporated u,ith lhe Central Govcrnnrent rnanual.

The Uni'ersity engages its emproyees through open and transparent process and rhc errproyees
engaged are expected to cornply with constitutional and rnandatory requirenrents, including rhe
principles ofaffirmative action, gender and person enabred dilferentry and ,ainstrcaming of

Moi University
Consolidated Annual Report and Financial Statemenls
For tht .vear ended June 30,2023.
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National values and principles ofCovernance as espoused in the constitution that guide the hiring
proccss. lhe pertbrmance ofthe employee are measured using appraisal instrunrcnts lhat provides
fecdback. review progress. idenrifies and addresses potential lirr rerrarding and ad\ancenrrnt
'l'he LJnilcrsity conlinues to provide a conducive workinq environment and comlirnable and sccure
thcilities lbr our staff in compliance with security and saltt1' standards inclLrding provisions of
protcctivc gears in hazardous situations. The Universiry- continues to protnote lrarrnoniotrs rvorking
relationship with the surrounding communilies to provide cohesive business envirrlnment. cornfbrt
and sccuritv to our employees.

ln addititu the University encourages and builds on its pool ol'stafl'to improvc and enhance their
career development through in service training, promotions and support training liorn other
Governrnent lnstitutions and collaborative instilutes.

iv) Market place practices-

Rivatex [:.ast Africa Limited, through the Ministry of Industry. 'Irade and Co-operatives collaborates
with other Government institutions like the Fibre Crops I)ircctorate ol the Agriculturc and Food
Authoritv (AFA), the Kenya Plant Health lnspectorate Service (KEPHIS). Kenva Agriculrure and
Livestock Research Organization (KALRO). farrners. ginners and spinners havc siunctl tripartirc
agrcer]lcnts for the creation olpublic arvarencss (sensitization). sustainability antl nttrlti-scctorial rural
indtrslrialization. Through these linkages the lhrrners rvill he assLrred of'a readl nrarket lbr thcir
producc and at competitive prices, leading to.iob/rvealth crcalion and povertl,alleviation.

r, Corporate Social Responsibility / Communitv l)ngagements

'I'he University recognizes that for sustainable growth and prolitability it rnust plar its rote in socicry
as an ethical and compliant entity that respects communities. legal requirements antl rhe enr irrtnrncnt

During the year, the Universily's Maternal Fetal Medicine Unit perfonned its first Intra-L.lrerine
Fetal l ransfusion in Eldoret, Kenya. This was a first-of-its-kind procedure, to be done in Sub-
Saharan Africa after Aga khan University.

The procedure was done on a patient rvho rvas rhesus allo-imrrrunized with letal anernia leading to
hydrops. u,hich rvas diagnosed ultrasonographical by nreasurernent of Middle Cerebral Arterl
(MCA)-- [)eak Systolic Velocity (PSV). ]'he letus rvas translirsed rvith irradiated lcucocylc-deplered
"O" Ncgltive blood.

I'he AS,AI-l project. a collaboration betrvc'en Moi Universitt,. South Eastern tJniversitl. ol'Kenya
(SEKL.l)(both in Kenya) and Vrije Universiteit in the Netherlands, organized a I'arrncrs'training in
27'r' Jttne, 2023. The project is being implemented at the Schoot of Sciences and Aerospace Studies
at Moi [Jniversity. The training covered various topics such as nutrition, organic ftrrrning. biogas
installation. harvesting, and utilization. It served as a continuation ofa study condLrcted b1 a group
in Kesscs C'onstituency, which revealed that over l5 percent ofthe local popLrlation sLrtltred lionr
tnir ln Lrt r it ion.

ln rnceting the agenda four consideration, the University provided communit) acccss to Health
Services through AMPATH grants in counties of the North Rilt, Nyanza and Western regions, among
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them are Turkana, Uasin-Gishu, Trans-Nzoia, Elgeyo-Marakwet, West-Pokot, Kisumu, Bungoma,

Kakamega, Vihiga and Busia Counties.

The four schools in the College of Health sciences participated in COBES activities by engaging the

communilies in heatth promotion, outreach and service delivery activities at level three (3) and five
(5) lacilities and participated in problem solving meetings with the community members on matters

of health. COBES reports on health related issues with the findings and recommendations were shared

with the Health facilities that the students went for COBES activities for further dissemination by the

health facilities.

The University through its ACEII-TRE project conducted an outreach programme training to the

surrounding communities and school on environments safety using modem technology olBiogas use.

It also contributed in supplying and fitting Biogas equipment to three schools in the Counties of
Uasing-Gishu; Nandi and Elgeyo-Marakwet.

t l. Report of The University Council

The University Council submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year

ended June 30th 2023, which show the state ofthe University's affairs.

i) Principal activities

The principal activities of the University continue to be the provision University education

through teaching, research and outreach.

iD Results

The results ofthe IJniversity for the year ended June 30th ,2023, are set out on page l-55

Council Members

The members of the Council who served during the year are shown on page ix to xiv

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the University in accordance r.r'ith

Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015.

By Order ofthe University Council

Prof. Isaac S. Kosgey, Ph.D., MBS

Vice Chancellor/Secretary to the Council

iiD

iv)

v)
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12. Statement of Council Responsibilities

Section 8 I of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and Section 47 of the Universities Act, 2012
require the Council Members to prepare financial statements in respect of the University, which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the University at the end of the financial year and the
operating results ofthe University lor that year. The Council Members are also required to ensure that
the University keeps proper accounting records whioh disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial
position ofthe University. The Council Members are also responsible for safeguarding the assets ol
the University.

The Council Members are responsible for the preparation and presentation ofthe University's financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state ofaffairs ofthe University for and as at the end
of the financial year ended on June 30, 2023. This responsibility includes: (i) Maintaining adequate
financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout lhe
reporting period; (ii) Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the University; (iii) Designing, implemenring and maintaining
intemal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and
ensuring that they are lree lrom material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv)
Safeguarding the assets olthe Universityl (v) Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies:
and (vi) Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
The Council Members accept responsibility for the University's financial statements, which have been
prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates, in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the
manner required by the PFM Acl,2012 and the Universities Act,20l2. The Council Members are of
the opinion that the University's financial statements give a true and thir view of the state ol Moi
University transactions during the llnancial year ended June 30, 2023, afi ofthe University's financial
position as at that date.

The Council Members further confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the
University, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the University's financial statements as
well as the adequacy of the systems of intemal financial control.
Nothing has come to the attenlion of the Council Members to indicate that the University will not remain
a going concem for at least the next lwelve months lrom the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The University's llnancial statements were approved by the University Council on
2023 and signed on its behalf by:

t 2\' 02' 2+

Dr. Dr. Humphrey Kimani Njuguna
Ph.D. Law, Ph.D. Entrep
Chairperson of Council

Prof. Isaac S. Kosgey, Ph.D., MBS

xli
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL

l-nhi .in.- .-l(t t)l ttth,IiI\

HEADqUARTERS

Anniversary Towers
Monrovia Street

P.O. Box Joo84'ooroo
NAIROBI

REP( T OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON MOI UNIVERSITY FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution and
the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of the report, when read together constitute
the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Moi University set out on pages
1 to 66, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2023, and the
statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash
flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended,
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and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in
acccrdance with the provisions of Article 229 of lhe Constitution of Kenya and Section 35
of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and explanations which,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Moi University as at 30 June, 2023, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with lnternational
Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the Public Finance
Management Acl, 2012 and the Universities Act, No.42 of 2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. lnaccuracy in Rendering of Services Balance

The consolidated statement of financial performance reflects rendering of services
amount of Kshs.1,804,054,000 and as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements.
However, the supporting schedules provided reflected an amount of Kshs.557,862,000
resulting to an unexplained variance of Kshs.1 ,246,192,000.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of rendering of services amounts of
Kshs.1,804,054,000 could not be confirmed.

2. Unsupported Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The consolidated statement of financial position reflects receivables from exchange
transactions balance of Kshs.1,536,798,000 for Moi University which, as disclosed in
Note 21 (a) includes receivables balance of Kshs.1 ,929,438,000 and an impairment
allowance of Kshs.392,641 ,000. However, the schedules provided to support the balance
of Kshs.1 ,929,438,000 only supported student fees debtors amounts of
Kshs.1,726,707,000 and imprest debtors amounts of Kshs.42,680,000 leaving a balance
of Kshs.'l 60,051,000 unsupported.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of receivables from exchange
transactions balance of Kshs.1,536,798,000 could not be confirmed.

3. Unsupported Property, Plant and Equipment

The consolidated statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment
balance of Kshs.1 1 ,420,187,000. However, Note 25 to the financial statements reflects
a balance of Kshs.5,345,225,000 for Moi University and Kshs.6,074,932 for Rivatex E.A
Limited totalling Kshs.1 1 ,420,157 ,0OO resulting to an unexplained variance of
Kshs.30,000.

Further, review of the financial statements revealed that there was disposal of assets
totalling Kshs.709,000 as disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements. However, this
balance was not analyzed and supported. ln addition, the University has not revalued its
assets as required by Section 49 of IPSAS 17 which requires that revaluations should be
carried out regularly, so that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from
its fair value at the balance sheet date.
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ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the consolidated property, plant
and equipment balance of Kshs.1 1 ,420,187 ,0OO could not be confirmed.

4. lnaccuracy in lntangible Assets

The consolidated statement of financial position reflects intangible assets balance of
Kshs.19,944,000. However, Note 26 to the financial statements reflects intangible assets
balances of Kshs.19,944,000 and Kshs.39,056,000 for Moi University and Rivatex E.A
Limited all totalling Kshs.58,249,000 resulting to an unexplained variance of
Kshs.38,305,000.

ln the circumstances, accuracy and completeness of the consolidated intangible assets
balance of Kshs.19,944,000 could not be confirmed.

5. Unsupported Balance on GoK Loan

As previously reported, the consolidated statement of financial position reflects
Government of Kenya (GoK) loan balance of Kshs.231 ,250,000. Moi University received
GoK loan of Kshs.250,000,000 on 11 June, 2008 to facilitate the acquisition of Karatina
Campus; which is now a fully chartered University.

However, the following observations were made:

(i) The purchase agreement or contract between Moi University and Kenya Tea
Development Agency (KTDA) for purchase of Kagochi Training lnstitute which
became Karatina Campus indicated that Kshs.168,852,825 was agreed and Moi
University paid Kshs.151 ,675,429 on 4 September, 2009. lnformation provided
indicates that Kshs.168,852,825 was supposed to be paid to the vender as deposit
towards the purchase price on or before the execution of the sale agreement by the
parties. However, there was no documentary evidence indicating that the payment
was made to Kenya Tea Development Agency Ltd (KTDA).

(ii) The purchase agreement indicated contract price of Kshs.168,852,825 and other
expenditure of Kshs.24,640,300 totalling Kshs.193,493,125 as indicated in the
analysis below;

Date Cheque No. Purpose
Amount
(Kshs.)

27 October, 2009 39 Licenses Fees 5,220,000
11 February, 2010 165 Licenses Fees 7,733,333
13 May, 2010 77 Licenses Fees 3,093,333
25 June, 2010 87 Licenses Fees 3,093,634
25 June, 2010 88 Moveable Assets 5,500,000
Total 24,640,300
4 September, 2009 1718 Purchase Price 168,852,825
Grand Total 193,493,125
'I 1 June, 2008 lnitial Loan 250,000,000
Balance 56.506,875

However, there was no evidence indicating thatThe National Treasury had given consent
of assigning the loan to Karatina University in accordance with legal notice establishing
Karatina University College. lt was also noted that the loan had not been serviced for the
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last twelve years and the University is in breach of GoK loan agreement terms. Further,
no documentary evidence detailing the utilization of Kshs.56,506,875 was provided for
audit.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and validity of the Government of
Kenya (GoK) loan balance of Kshs.231,250,000 could not be confirmed.

6. Variance in the Prior Year Revenue Reserves

The consolidated statement of changes in net assets reflects closing and opening balance
of accumulated deficit of Kshs.4,510,074,000. However, the previous year audited
financial statement reflected accumulated deficit of Kshs.4,510,106,000 resulting to an
unexplained variance of Kshs.32,000.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of the accumulated deficit balance of
Kshs.4,501,074,000 could not be confirmed.

7. lnaccuracies in Capital and Revenue Reserves

The consolidated statement of financial position reflects capital and revenue reserves
balances of Kshs.14,282,526,000 and (Kshs.5,796,613,000) respectively. However, the
statement of changes in net assets reflects capital and retained earnings balances of
Kshs.13,845,594,000 and (Kshs.5,359,681,000) respectively as at 30 June, 2023,
resulting to unexplained and unreconciled variances of Kshs.436,932,000 both in the
capital and revenue reserves.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of the capital and revenue reserves balances of
Kshs.14,282,526,000 and (Kshs.5,796,613,000) respectively could not be confirmed.

8. Unsupported Deferred Tax on Excess Depreciation

The consolidated statement of changes in net assets reflects deferred tax on excess
depreciation balance of (Kshs.303,057,000). However, this balance was not supported
with any documentary evidence.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of deferred tax balance of
(Kshs.303,057,000) could not be confirmed.

9. lnaccuracies in Other Liabilities and Provisions

The consolidated statement of financial position reflects other liabilities and provisions
balance of Kshs.14,420,000 in respect of outstanding audit fees provisions out of which
Moi University owed Kshs.14,420,000 and Rivatex East Africa Limited owed
Kshs.1 ,790,000 all totalling Kshs. 16,21 0,000 resulting to an unexplained variance of
Kshs.1,790,000. ln addition, the balance of Kshs.14,420,000 differs audit fee payable
amounts of Kshs.4,020,000 disclosed in Note 28 to the financial statements resulting to
an unexplained and unreconciled variance of Kshs.12,190,000.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of other liabilities and provisions
balance of Kshs.14,420,000 could not be confirmed.
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10. Inaccuracies in the Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final receipts budget
and actual on a comparable basis of Kshs.6,915,280,000 and Kshs.4,835,974,000 which
differed with the recomputed amounts of Kshs.6,9'15,276,000 and Kshs.4,835,969,000
for final receipts budget and actual on comparable basis respectively resulting to an
unexplained variance of Kshs.4,000 and Kshs.5,000 respectively. Further, the statement
reflects final expenditure budget and actual on a comparable basis of Kshs.6,915,281
and Kshs.5,787,878,000 respectively which differed with the recomputed amount of
Kshs.20,206,585,000 and Kshs.14,957,392,000 for final expenditure budget and actual
on comparable basis respectively resulting to an unexplained variance of
Kshs. 1 3,291,304,000 and Kshs.9, 1 69,514,000 respectively.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and fair presentation of the above mentioned balances
could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Moi University Management in accordance
with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable
to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit evidence I

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

1. Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final receipts budget
and actual on a comparable basis of Kshs.6,915,280,000 and Kshs.4,835,974,000
respectively resulting to an under-funding of Kshs.2,079,306,000 or 30% of the budget.
Similarly, the University expended Kshs.5,787,878,000 against an approved budget of
Kshs.6,915,281,000 resulting to an under-expenditure of Kshs.1,127,403,000 or 16% of
the budget. Further, it was noted that the total amounts in the statement of comparison
and actual amounts for both receipts and payments were inaccurate.

The underfunding and underperformance affected the planned activities and may have
impacted negatively on service delivery to the public.

2. Uncertainty on Sustainability of Services

The consolidated statement of financial position reflects current liabilities totalling
Kshs.6,796,836,000 and current assets totalling Kshs.4,084,510,000 resulting in a
negative working capital of Kshs.2,712,236,000. Further, the group incurred an operating
deficit of Kshs.953,633,000 in the year under review which increased its accumulative
deficits balance to Kshs.S,359,681,000 as at 30 June, 2023.

The unfavorable performance and financial position cast significant doubt on the
University's ability to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due. The
University may, therefore, have to largely depend on financial support from the National
Government and the goodwill of creditors to sustain its services.
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My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters

ln the audit report of the previous year, several paragraphs were raised. However,
Management has not resolved and disclosed the status of all the prior year matters as
prescribed in the reporting requirements set by the Public Sector Accounting Standards
Board. Management has not provlded satisfactory explanation for the delay in resolving
the issues.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on LaMulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

'1. Employee Gosts

1.1 Retention of Employees Beyond Retirement Age

The consolidated statement of financial performance reflects employees costs amount of
Kshs.4,672,041,000 which includes an amount of Kshs.4,604,605,000 for Moi University
as disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements. Analysis of the Master Payroll forthe
months of June revealed that seventy-four (74) non{eaching staffs who attained the
mandatory retirement age of sixty (60) years were still in the payroll and were paid total
gross consolidated salary amount of Kshs.9,146,253. This is contrary to Section 9(vii) of
Moi University statutes, 2013 which states that staff of the University in grade 1 to 15 shall
retire from employment when the staff attains sixty (60) years or any other age as maybe
determined by the government from time to time.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

1.2 lrregular Appointment of Staff

Review of expenditure documents revealed that the University made payment of basic
salaries totalling to Kshs.31,211,160 to twenty{hree (23) staff members who were
recruited during the year under review. However, the audit revealed the following
anomalies:
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i. Annual recruitment plan - authorizing the appointments was not provided for audit.
This is contrary to Section B2(2) of Human Resource Policies and Procedures Manual
forthe Public Service May, 2016 which requires that on the basis of Human Resource
Plans, Ministries/State Departments shall be required to develop annual recruitment
plans which will be forwarded to the Public Service Commission at the beginning of
each financial year to enable it plan to fill the vacancies.

ii. The key recruitments documents which include; summary/long list of the applicants,
interview programme, staff establishment of the respective section/department
reflecting the vacancies were not provided for audit.

iii. Record of panel interview guideline was not provided as required by Section 2.4.6 ot
Moi University Human Resource Policy Manual, March 2010 which clarifies that the
lnterview Panel shall design interview guidelines that will be used in all type of
interviews and such guidelines shall be specific to the job to be filled and the
competencies required.

iv. Signed Minutes of the lnterview were not provided for audit review.

v. Perusal of personal files for all the candidates appointed revealed that none of the
candidates had documents of chapter six (6) attached to the respective personal
files. This is contrary to Section 2.4.12(m) of Moi University Human Resource Policy
Manual, March 2010 which states that an employee on first appointment to provide
certificate of compliance with chapter six of the constitution.

vi. All the newly recruited staffs were not inducted within the first three months of their
employment contrary to Section 2.4.17 of Moi University Human Resource Policy
Manual, March 2010 that stipulates the head of department for training and
development in conjunction with the head of department from where the employee
has been deployed shall co-ordinate induction and orientation process as soon as
possible but not later than three months after reporting.

ln the circumstances, the regularity and validity of the recruitment process could not be
confirmed.

1.3 Unpaid Casual Wages

Review of the payroll revealed that the basic salaries included wages totalling
Kshs.144,788,057 paid to casual workers. However, the Management failed to pay and
accrue monthly wages to casual workers totalling to Kshs.69,160,491 being six (6)
months'pay. This is contrary to Section 1B(2)(c) of Employment Act, 2007 which requires
that subject to sub-section (1) wages or salaries shall be deemed to be due in case of an
employee employed for a period exceeding one month, at the end of each month or part
thereof.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

1.4 Non-Compliance with Law on Ethnic Composition

During the year under review, the total number of employees of the University was two
thousand three hundred and seventy-eight (2,378) out of which one thousand four
hundred and ninety-one (1 ,491) or approximately 630/o of the total number were members
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of the dominant ethnic community in the county. This is contrary to Section 7(1) and (2)
of the National Cohesion and lhtegration Act, 2008 which states that, "all public offices
shall seek to represent the diversity of the people of Kenya in the employment of staff and
that no public institution shall have more than one-third of its staff establishment from the
same ethnic community'.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The consolidated statement of financial position reflects consolidated cash and cash
equivalents balance of Kshs.585,483,000 which includes cash and cash equivalents
balance of Kshs.549,602,000 for Moi University. The schedule provided for audit in
support of the cash book balances indicated that the University operates seventy-seven
(77) bank and Mpesa accounts out of which seventeen (17) were found to be dormant
with no transactions during the year under review. The University Management did not
explain why dormant bank accounts are being maintained out of which seven (7) attracted
account maintenance charges.

ln the circumstances, the University continues to incur nugatory expenses on dormant
accounts and value for money from such expenses could not be confirmed.

3. Failure to Remit Staff Deductions

The consolidated statement of financial position reflects trade and other payables from
exchange transactions balance of Kshs.6,782,416,000 which includes staff deductions
not remitted to respective bodies of Kshs.5,208,208,000 as disclosed in Note 27 to the
financial statements. This is contrary to Section 35 of Cooperatives Act Cap 490 and
Section 53A of Retirement Benefits Act, 1997 which states that where an employer,
having with the agreement of an employee who is a member of a scheme, made a
deduction from the employee's emoluments for remittance to the scheme, fails to remit
the deduction within fifteen days of the deduction, the scheme may, after giving such
employer not less than seven days' notice, institute proceedings for the recovery of the
deduction. Further, the University may face legal challenges on outstanding deductions
including payment of interest on unremitted staff deductions.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

4. General Suppliers' Payables

The consolidated statement of financial position reflects trade and other payable from
exchange transactions of Kshs.6,782,416,000 which includes a balance of
Kshs.6,712,398,000 for Moi University which further includes an amount of
Kshs.1,'158,163,080 for general suppliers as disclosed in Note 27 to the financial
statements. The balance of Kshs.1,158,163,080 is made up of Kshs.1,069,43'1,054 for
payables which dates from 201512016 financial year lo 202112022 and Kshs.88,732.026
are payables for the year under review. However, the Management could not explain why
the balance of Kshs.1,158,163,080 had not been settled. This is contrary to Paragraph
3.1 of the Moi University Creditors Policy document 2016 which states that the Deputy
Vice Chancellor finance shall ensure that all contracts awarded by the University stipulate
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payment terms that are favorable to the University. As far as possible, payment should
fall due not sooner than 90 days from the invroice date, unless (a) there are financial
incentives for the University to effect earlier payment; or in the case of small, micro and
medium enterprises, this policy may cause financial hardship to the supplier in which case
payment may be effected at the end of the month during which the service is rendered,
goods supplied or works executed.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

5. National Government Constituencies Development Fund (NGCDF) and Other
Sponsors

The consolidated statement of financial position reflects trade and other payable from
exchange transactions of Kshs.6,782,416,000. lncluded in this balance is Moi University
amount of Kshs.6,7'12,398,000 which further includes Kshs.85,372,508 from NGCDF and
Other Sponsors (OS).

Scrutiny of the records for National Government Constituencies Development Fund and
Other Sponsors payable provided for audit revealed that a total of Kshs.62,988,741 was
received by the University in the year under review whereas Kshs.22,383,767 related to
the previous years. However, the total amount of Kshs.85,372,508 was neither credited
to the sponsored students accounts nor refunded to the sponsors.

ln the circumstances, the intended beneficiaries' risks discontinuing their education due
to unpaid fees.

6. lntangible Assets

Review of contract documents revealed that a contractor was awarded a contract to
supply and install an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software at a contract sum of
Kshs.26,595,959 which included a one lifetime license fee of Kshs.1 1 ,500,000. However,
the useful life of the intangible asset, whether the intangible asset useful life is indefinite
or finite and, if finite, the useful life or the amortization rates used were not disclosed in
the financial statements.

Further, although the Management provided status report indicating completion of the
project, no evidence was provided indicating commissioning of the software and it was
therefore not possible to confirm whether the project is fully completed or not.

ln the circumstances, value for money on Kshs.19,944,000 paid for the intangible asset
could be confirmed.

7. Missing Note

The statement of cash flows reflects provision for audit fees negative balance of
Kshs.3,730,000 which should be supported by Note 29 to the financial statements.
However, Note 29 was missing instead the balance was supported by Note 28 to the
financial statements.

ln the circumstances, the financial statements were not presented in accorciance with the
prescribed standards.
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8. Missing Signature

Review of the financial statements revealed that the signature for the Vice Chancellor
was missing under the report on implementation status of Auditor-General's
recommendations.

ln the circumstances, the contents of the report could not be confirmed to be correct.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 23'15 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
University's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the University or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
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in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the University's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 20',l5 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Anide 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expecled to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) ol the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of noncompliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
University policies and procedures may deteriorate.
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As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the University's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the University to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the University to express an opinion on the financial statements.

o Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA ancy a cBs
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

22March,2024
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15. Consolidated Statement of Financial Position As At 30 June 2023

The financial statements set out on pages I to 9 were signed on behalfofthe University Council by:

(#

Prof. Isaac S. Kosgey Ph.D., MBS

Vice Chancellor
CPA Egla C.K. Samoei

Ag. Chief Finance Officer
ICPAK MNo:5141
Dare lll tl +c'tY

Dr .Dr. Humprey K. Njuguna
Ph.D., Law, Ph.D., Entrep.

Chairman of Council
tl

Date t 9 l'>l).'s-r1

2

Assets

Current assets Notes
Cash and cash equivalents 20 549.602 15,88 r 585,483 942.07 3

Reccivables from exchange transactions 2t r,536,798 I I t,155 | ,6 t 5,524 I,4 t 3,164
Receivables from non-exchange
transactions

22 1.347.233 t,347,233 t,335,689

Inventories 23a 54.635 481.388 536.023 56E.560
Biological assets 23b 247 247 40'1

J.48E,515 62E,624 4,084,510 4J60,092
Non-current essets

Proocrty. plant and eouioment 25 5.345.225 6,07 4,932 I I ,420,187 I t,300,352
Investment 24 1.000
Intangible assets 26 19,944 3 8,305 19.944 55,0 t I

Biological assets 23b 63,0r2 63,0 r2 44,908
5,429,181 6,r 13,2J7 I 1,50J,t43 11,400.21t

Totrl ssscts t,911,696 6,74 t,E6l t5,5E7,652 15,660J63
Lirbilities
Curr€nt lirbilities
Trade and other payables from exchange
ransactions

271 6,7t2,398 140,924 6,782,416 5,860,063

Other liabilities and provisions t4.420 14,420 t0.980
Bank account 20 t7. t 16

6.726.818 140,924 6.796.836 5,EEE,539
Non-cu rrent lisbilities
GoK loan 3l 23t,250 23t,2s0 23 1,250

23rJ50 23rJ50 23 rJ50
Totsl lisbilities 6,958.068 t40.924 7.028.086 6,1 19,7E9
Nct rssets 1,959,628 6,600.937 8.559.566 9.540.574

Capital Reserves 4,726,313 9,567.7 57 14.294.070 t3,976,995
Share Capital 1,000
Rcvaluation Reserve 73,651 73,653 '7 3,653
Revenue Reserve (2,7 66,6E5\ (3 .041 .4'12\ (s.808. rs7) (4.5 r0. t06)
Toarl net rss.ts rnd lirbililies l,959,628 6,600,937 E.559,566 9,540.574

Date r3f 7f 3-"''',.'
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16. Consolidated Statement ofChanges in Net Assets for the year ended 30 June 2023

(3,9r9Jrs) 10,014,53613,860,198 73,653As et July l, 2021

(699,128)(699,128)Deficit for the year

225,266225.166CapitaUDevelopment granls received during the year

108,369( 108,369)
Transfer of depreciation/amortisation from capital

fund to retained eamings

a 9,540,57473,653 A (4's10,074)
A13,976,99sAs rt June 30, 2022

t
) r,slo,szl13,976,995 73,653 (4,s10,074)As rt July l, 2022

31.54431.544
CapitayDevelopment grants received during the year-

Moi

244,139244,139
Capital/Development grants received during the year-

Rivatex

t04,027( r 04,027)
Transfer of depreciation/amortisation from capital

fund to retained eamings
(303,057)(303.057)Deffered Tax on Excess Depreciatron

(953,634) (953,6r4)Deficit for the year

8,559,56673,653 (5Js9,602)13,845,594As et June 30, 2023

3
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17. Consolidated Statement ofCash l'lows for the r,ear endetl 30 June 202J

Net cash flows from linancing activities

4

Cash flous from operating sctivities
'lranslers liont other goYcmmcnts entitics 6 1.215.877 t02.222 I.:l7lt.099 1.367.5 li

1 1.80{.05{

8

Rcnlal rr\ enue liom l'acilitics and equipnrcnt

Rcndcring ol sln,ices

Salc ol g(x)ds

9

r05.8tt..1

e.25.1

(293.07{ )

l.ll(,l.Ur.l

_ ( l37.l9l)
e.l5 i

2.1 18.7(r3

tt67.7e5)
.1.323

Financc income
32

Total Reccipts 6,t95,066 ( r90,8st ) 6,00{,2t5 6,322,8J6
Pavmanls

IOLjsc 0l (;(,('ds and Serviccs

l:nlnlir) cc\ ( osls

lJ27.0ti
t.60t.605

57.99(r

67.436
I{crnuncrirtion of the CounciI t2 2.1..i{ 8 .l.l6_.]

1.617.325

5.010,606

i 4.5 53
Dcnrrciotion and Amonizalitlrl Ir\pcnscs ti 99.-r0t) 5.-.] I8

llr 7ll
101.627

l.tit35.1)l)9

1.67t.0.

l0l{.169
Ilt'pai|s .rniJ Mainlenance t4 177.6(15 r8.339 196.00.1 I It6,465

t5Contrirclcd Scn iccs

Total Pa! ments
6lt.l 6lt

6,80t,108

3.289

156,7{l
34.4ltl

7,02t,961
Nct cnsh florvs from/(used in) operating
actir ili.s (606,0.r I ) (347.592)

7 r.157

6,957.8.19

(95J,63{) t699,128)
ArJjurtnrcnts lrrr:-

Dcprcciution 25 99.t09 .1.7 t 8 t0.l.0t 7 t08,369
Pror ision tirr audit l'ecs 3,710 3,730 4.020
( Dcc rcasc )/inc rcasc in pror ision lbr d. dehrs 47.t30 37, r.14 23,497
Operating deficit beforc working capital

Ch rges in working capital
cha lges __({llo7r) J05 IJO ( 56J ,24 | )

t.'l it.it7 64. i22 7.1-09{

2i I I 7.9-.1.1) 92.2 r 2 l5(,.tt6i
27 J72 t9i 2. t.l5

176!,qq.ll

8{.274

L) () ll59

7-t lltlr
57.1 Ii't I lr).10-'t

7t)

( lncfcilsc ),dccrcasc in biological asscts

lncrcasr in tradc and other pa) ablcs

lncrcasc in douhtli-rl dcbts provision

[)ccreusc in invcnlories

Pror ision liu audit l'ecs

2lc
rl.7l0)

(.17. | -r{) ) 37,1.1,1

(1.020)

(21.497)
lncrcarc irr trade and other reccivables 2t (33 r.5:i6) (2 8.552 ) ( 119.60-l ) (20 t.606)

22 ( I I.5..1.1)

(232,sJJ) ( r37$19) (r5r,2{4)

lncrcilsc in lccievable li.om Non Exchanpc

Total ( hanges in Working Capital
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchusc ol propcrtr. plant. cquipmenr anri

Procccds on disposal ol'assels

tntan ible assets 25 ( r 7i..r:4 ) (7 r .682 ) ( r30.25.1

Nct cash flows from investing ac(ivities (173,124) (71,682\

tl5. t 0i )

(2.rs,r0s)

( I l.5.l.l )

(J?0 ,-182 )

5lti
(129,7 t6)

Capilal Jevclopment grunts li.ult CoK 6b iI5Jl 214.1-r9 275 (rli l 225. t66
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()

R€payment ofOverdraft (r6,7E6) ( r6.786)
Re$atement of Rivatex cEpital grants

N .t crsh flows fhoE finencing actlvtttcs 31"544 227,353 258,894 225,166

Nct (dccrcatcMncrtllc itr cs3h rtrd crsh cqllvrl.trts (374.422\ l7,832 (356,590) (55,795)
Cash and cash equivalents as at I July, 22 t7 924024 1E,049 942,073 997,%7
Cerh sod crlh cqElyrlc[t3 $ rt g) Jun.,23 l7 549,@2 35,t8r 5Es,483 942,073

5
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lE. Statement ofC

OthcI personal allorvances

,2023.
omparison ofBudget And Actual Amounts for the year ended 30 June 2023

6

2022-2023 2022-2023 2022-2023 2022-2023 2022-2023Revenue Kes'000 Kes'000 Kes'000 Kes'000 Kes'000Exchequer grants 3,438.280 3,438,280 3,438,280 t00%Tuition and related charges 2,530,722 2,530,7:l 891 ,77 s ( r.638,947) 35%(i)
feesS ud tn s acc n'to odm ta o ann cd al Ir ng 83, r26 81,126 53,l9 r (2e,e35) 64%Students fi eld trips/courses 128,668 t28.668 84,784 (43,8 83 ) 660/oStudents activities 56,303 56.3 03 43,77 3 ( 12,530) '7 80/.Research Funds 282,955 282.9ss 214,7 t6 ( 6 8.23 8) 76%

F arnr income 24,400 24,400 2,089 ( 2l.l i 0) 9%Rental income 3.608 3.608 8,014 ,1.405 222v.MU Technologies inconte 200.000 200.000 46.596 ( I5l.40l) 23volit)Elimu Millers income 27.1s0 2'7 .t 50 (27. t50) 0%(iii)Apple Farnting Project 20.000 20.000 (20.000)
Othcr inconre t20.064 120.06.1 52.751 t6'7 .312)Total inconre 6,915,280 6,9 t 5,280 4,835,974 (2,079,306) 7 00/"

0%(iv)

14yo

Expenses

Personal emoluments
Basic salaries 2,4 t7 .7 t9 2,417.7 t9 2,438, t81 (20.462) t0t%(; rat tritr rnd pensions contributions 407 .265 407 ,26s 356,791 50.473 88%[]ouse allorvance 947,556 917.556 955,068 {7.5 l2)

336.b{{ J Jo.044 { 18.17 5 )364.920( ommuting allorvance I t7.210 317.210 { l.(r63)l r8.271 
|Su b-total {,{26J95 {,.t26,395 l,{lJ,2J6 ( 6,8{0) 10001

co ar It no As dn ma n ntc nA cpe e xe sn esp
Passage and Leave :6.5 tl ?6,s r3 t 5,207 r r,105 570/.

t0t%
t 08yo

tlo% I
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clean mrte aln and detelng n srge ln ?o,
10.294 639 9.65 5 6V"Farnr expenses

I5,140 l-i. t40 2.23s 12.90s 15%Training expenses 4.632 1.63 3 93't 1.696 200Post graduate programme
770 770 4.97 5 ( 4.20s ) 646%(v)nU ers research an1ty emprogr 3,524 3.524 I.569 I.955 45%Purchase of motor vehicles 30.000 30.000 30.000 0v6Purchas of an and ut enp eq pm 60,230 (30,000) 30,23 0 30,230 0%eR anrS d Ma ntepa cenan of P an E& uq p r,458 t,206 2,664 1,090 1.574 4ty.Purchase mof de ca u m neq p

Maintenance of buildings 30,s34
3 0.5 34 13,793 16.7 4 t 45%aM ntenance of com u ersp 1,209 1.209 58 r.t5l 5%Mai

faci
ntenance ofcatering and hostels
lities

39.230 39.?30 13.299 2s.93 t 34%
alM ntenanc of a ser u espp 4,912 4.912 1.902 3.009 390/.ayaM n nante ce fo uo ndsp 1,t02 7s3 t.855 t,334 521 72YoICT infrastructure

t0,000 ( 5.000) 5.000 1 .027 3.97 3 210/.Onl ine Teaching Infrastructure 2,000 2.000 2.000 0%ERP expenses
6,700 6.700 5.496 104 82o/oIODL expenses
6,426 6.426 6.426 ov"frn as ruc dure e o tn np 40,500 ( r0.804) 29.696 29.55 t145 0%Pa ment fo outs andv de Sbrng 221 ,967 221 .967 85.938 136.029 39%Remedial Plan-Pension and provident

t7 t,5 t2 l7 t,5t2 t7 t,5t2 0%Programme accreditation costs
t 5,240 15.240 t42 t5.098 lo/oCurriculum Developrnent and Rev ierr I2,000 12.000 2t'7 I r ,783 2o/ooC n sract rve cES Sand hu rSC o snpt 20.239 20.239 8,64 t. I I.598 13%

te4.2e4 i t9.1.294 100.537 ( r06.2.11) I 5.5%( v i)Srudents field rrips/courses r28,668 t28.668 l t8.574 I 0,094 92o/oMU Technologies expenses 249,09s 249.095 5,3 88 243.7 07 2o/novC d 9 nte tin no and m l')o oc tSs8a 10.000 10.000 t0,000 0%Students activities 56,304 56,i03 18,345 i7,e58 33Yo

Research lunds disbLtrscntents

8
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2. Ba@et varlaaces:

i) The number ofstudents who werc enrorcd during the year were less than those projectGd.ii) MU TechnoloSies was anticiparing to secure a co-n,*.i ,rirt ICTA in the year uiae. ,"view uut this did not materialize.iii) The Elimu Millers was not operational during the year under review.
iv) There was an anticipation ofharvesting ofAlples ruhi"h *u, n"r". realized.
v) {here were increased post graduate activities during the year.

vi) There was increase in research activities utilizing thJ avuilable funds * the projects individual budgets for planned actiyities.
'''H:1t",["^'ear under review the new stratetic plan -2023'2027,was u"ing worked on, necessitating many meetings and engagements with the

l0
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19. Notes to the Financial Statements

l. General Information

2

Moi University is established by and derives its authority and accountabiritl, rrorn the
Llniversities Act. 20l2 and the Moi University charter. 2013. The University is who[y
owned by the Government of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. Thc Universitl,.s principal
activity is the provision of University education through teaching. research and oLrtreach

Statement of Compliance and Basis of preparation

lhc flnancial statements have bcen prepared on a historicar cost basis except tbr the

'rcasurement 
at re-varued amounts of certain iterns ot' property. prant and ctlLripment,

marketable securities and financiar instrumcnts at ririr varue. irnpairetr asscls at their
estirnated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their grr.esent value.
The preparation offinancial statements in conlbrrnity with International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (lpSAS) allows the use of estitnates and assLtmptions. lt also
rcquires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying thc tJniversity.s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degrce ofjudgenrent or con:plexitv, or
rvhere assumptions and estimates are significant to the flnancial staternents. are disclosed
in Note 5 ofthese financial statements.

-l he financial statements have been prepared and presented in Ke'nya Shillings. rvhich is
the tirnctional and reporting currencr ofthe Univcrsitr.

The tlnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with thc pFM Act. the State

Corporations Act, the Universities Act 20r2, and International public Sector Accounting
Standards (IPSAS). The accounting poricies adopted have been consistcntr'appricrl to a[ the
years presented.

Adoption of New and Revised Stanclards

Nctr and amended standards ond interpretat ion-s in issue effectit,c irt lha .1,s111- cnded 30
.lunt 2023.

IPSASB delerred the apprication date ofstandards fio,r r.r January 2023 ou,ing to covid
19. 'l'his was done to provide entitics wirh tinrc to et'rbctivery appr.r the standards. The
ticl'crral was set fbr I'r January. 2023.

Ncw and umended standortls ottd interyretulions in issuc but not.t,ct cll-ct,tit,a in the
.rcar ended 30 June 202.1.

I

ll
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IPSAS 4l: Financial
lnstrulnents

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles lor the financial
reporting ol financiar assets and riabirities that wiI present rerevant and
useful inforrration to users of llnancial statements lbr their assessment of
the amounts, tirning and uncertaintv of an Universit-r's firture cash flows.
IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements riith rnore uselll
infbnnation than IpSAS 29. by:

. Applying a single classilication and nteasurcmcnt model fbr
financial assets that considers the characteristics olthe asset.s cash
flows and the objective lor which the asset is held:

. Applying a single forward-looking expectcd cr.edit loss model
that is applicable to all financial instruments sub.ject to irnpainnent
testing; and

' Applying an improved hedge accounting rrodel that broadens lhe
hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model
develops a strong link between an Universitl .s 

risk management
strategies and the accounting treatment lbr inslruments held as part
of the Iisk managetnent strategy.

Applicable: l"t January 2023:

IPSAS 42: Social
Bene llts

rs to improve the r.elevance. faithful
representattveness and comparability of the inlbrrnation that a reporting
University provides in its financial statements about social beneflts. The
information provided should herp users of the financiar statements and
general-purpose fi nancial reports assess:

(a) The nature ofsuch social benefits provided by the tJniversity.
(b) The key features ofthe operation ofthose social benetit schernes; and

(c) The impact of such social benelits provided on the Universitv,s
financial perfbrmance. financial position and cash llows.

Applicable: l.r January 2023

The objective of this Standard

Anrendments to
Other IPSAS
resLrlt ing fi'om IPSAS
41, Financial
lnslrurnents

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the
components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted
when IPSAS 4l was issued.

Applicable: lst Jan uary 2023:

12
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Othcr itnprovements

to ll'SAS

IPSAS 43

b) Amendments to IPSAS .10

hedging and credit risk whi
IPSAS 4l was issued.

ing illustlative cxarnp les on
inadvertcntly ont itted when

. regard

ch were

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30. to update the guidance ltrr accounting
for financial guarantee contracts which were inadvertcntly omitted
rvhen IPSAS 4l n,as issued.

Amendmenrs to IPSAS 33. to update the guidance on classiti ing fjnancial
instruments on initial adoption ol'accrual basis llrSAS rvhich were
inadvertently orritterj rvhen tpSAS 4l was issued.

Applicuble lst Junuu\, 202.j

o IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Irinancial Inlormation abour thc General
Government Sector-

Amendments to refer to the latest Svstem of National AccoLrnts (SNA
2008).

. IPSAS 39: Ernployee Benelits

Now deletes the term composite social security benelits as it is no longer
defined in IPSAS.

. IPSAS 29: Financial instrurncnls: Recognition itnd l\Irirsurenrent
Standard no l.nger incrLrded in the 202r IpSAS hancibook as it is now
superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable f-rorr l.r January 2023.

Applicohlc I't Junuury, 2025

The standard sels out the principles for the r.eco,lrnition. nrcasufenlent,
presentation. and discrosure of reases. The ob.jectivc is to ensure that
lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a nranner that fhithfully
represents those transactions. l'his infbrmation gives a basis Ibr users of
financial statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial
position, financial perfbrmance and cashflows ofthc LJniversiry.

The ne*, standard requires enlirics to rccognise. tneasure ilnd present
intbrrnation on right ofuse asscts and lease liabilitics.

IPSAS 44: Non-
Currcnt Assets Held
for Sale and

Discont in ued

Opcr:rlions

Applicable lst Jan uar.l, 2025

The Standard requires,
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Early adoption of standards
The University did not earry - adopt any new or amended standards in year 2022/2023.

t

classified as held for sale to be measured
at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the
depreciation of such assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented
separately in the statement of tjnancial position and the results of
discontinued operations to be presented separately in the statement of
flnancial perforrnance.

Assets that meet the criteria to be
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4 Suntmary of Significant Accounting policies

a) Revenue recognition

i,; Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Fces. taxes and fines

lhe University recognizes revenues liom fees. taxes and tines when the evsnt occurs and
the assel recognition criteria are met. To the extent that there is a rclatetl condition
attached that would give rise to a liabirity to repav the arrount. dell'rred inconre is
lccognized instead ofrevenue. Other non-exchange revenues are recognizcd rhen it is
probable that the future econonric benefits or serr ice potential associatcd *,ith rhe asset
ir ill llow to the university and the l'air value.r'thc asset can bc rneasurcd rcliabrr.
'l'ransfers from othe r povern ment entiaies

Ilevenues from non-exchange transactions with orher governnrent entities are nrcasured
at l'air value and recognized on obtaining contror of the asset (cash, goods. services and
property) if the transf'er is l'ree fiom conditions and it is probable that the economic
benefits or service potentiar rerated to the asset rvil flow to the university and can be
measured reliably. Recurrent grants are recognized in the statement of' conrprehensive
income. Development/capital grants are recognized in the staternent ofrinancial position
and realised in the statement ofcomprehensive income over the rrsefirl life ol'lhc assets
that has been acquired using such firnds.

ii) Ilevenue from exchange transactions

ILenderinp of scrvtces
'l'hc University recognizes revenue tiom rendering of'services wherr the event occurs and
the asset recognition criteria are met.. To the extent that ther.e is a rclated condition
attached that would give rise to a liability to r.pay the arnount, deltn.ed incorre is
recognized instead of revenue.

where the contract outcome cannot be measured reriably, revenue is recognizcti only to
the exlent that the expenses incurred are recoverable.

Sale of soods

Revenue from the sale ofgoods is recognized when the signiricant risks and rcwards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery ofthe goods and when the
arnount ofrevenue can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the economic benefits
.r scrvice potential associated rvith the transaction will flow to the Universitv.

I nterest income

lnterest income is accrued using the elfective yield nrethod. The eft'cctive yield tliscounts
cstirnated f'uture cash receipts through the expected lil'e olthe flnancial asset t() that asset.s
nr:t carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal ourstanding to dcre[.r]ine
interest income each period.
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Summary, of Significant Accounting policies (Continued)

Dividends

Dividends or simirar distributions must be recognized when the sharehorder.s or theUniversity's right to receive paymcnrs is establishcd.

Rental income arising from operating reases on investment propenies is accoLrnted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revEnue.

b) Budget information

The original budger for Fy 2022_2023 was approved by rhe Nat
2022. Revision of the Budget during the supplementary I bu
Capital Development budget revised down wards lrom Kes.
544.431

ional Assembly in July,
dget est imates saw our
80,000.000 to Kes. 3t.

The University's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expencliture
disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis using
a classification based on the nature ofexpenses in the statement offinanciar pertbrmance, whereas
the budget is prepared on a cash basis' The amounts in the financial statements were recast from
the accrual basis to the cash basis and recrassified by presentation to be on the sarne basis as theapproved budget. A comparison ofbudget and actuar amounts, prepared on a comparabre basis tothe approved budget. is then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts

In addition to the Basis diftbrence, ad.iustrnents to ap1o11ts in the financial statements are also
made fbr dill'erences in the tbrmats and classiflcation schernes adopted lor the presentation ofthe
financial statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcire the actuar amounts on a comparabre basis incruded in the staternent of
comparison of budget and actuar amounts and the actuals as per the statenlent of financialpertbrmance has been presented under section xvii ofthese financial statements.
c)'I'axes

current income tax assets and Iiabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax raws used to computethe amount are those that are enacted or substantivery enacred. at the repor.ting date in the areawhere the university operates and generates taxable income. current income tax relating to items
recognized direclly in net assels is recognized in net assets and not in the statement oilinancial
perlbrrnance Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns * ith respect tosituations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.
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Deferred tax

Detbrred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
ofassets and Iiabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax Iiabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. except irr respecl of
taxablc telnporary differences associated with investments in controlled entities. associates and
interests in-ioint ventures, when the timing of the reversal ofthe temporary diil'erences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary difl'erences will not reverse in the tbreseeable
f'utu re.

Defbrred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences. the carrv tbrward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognizcd to the extent that
it is p.obable that taxable profit will be available against which the dedLrctible ternporary
diff-erences. and lhe carry forward ofunused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized,
except in respect ofdeductible temporary differences associated with investmenrs in controlled

entilies. associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable luture and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount ofdeferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and redLrced 1o the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxablc prolit will be available to allou,all or
pafi ol'thc def'erred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized det'erred tax assets are re-assessed at
each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
prolits rvill allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the assel is realized or the liability is settled. basc,d on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substanlively enacted at the reporting datc.

Defbrred tax relating to items recognized outside surplus or deflcit is recognized outside surplus
or deficit. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction in net
assets. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are olt-set if a legally enforceable right exists
to set otfcurrent tax assets against current income tax Iiabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable University and the same taxation authority.

Soles tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount ofsales tax, except:

i) When the sales tax incurred on a purchase ofasscts or services is net recoverable flrom
the taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part ofthe cost of
acquisition ofthe asset or as pan ol'the expense itern. as applicable

ii) when receivables and payables are staled with the amount of sales lax incruded

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from. or payable to, the taxarion aLrthority is
included as part ofreceivabres or payables in the slatement oltinanciar position.
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d) ln\ t'stment property

Land -
Building-

Iiurn irure, Plant and Equipment_

Computers-

Motorvehicles-

f) Leases

Armotised fbr the remaining leasc pcriod

lnvestrnent properties are measured initialy at cost. incruding transaction costs. 
.r.he 

carryinganr.unt includes the replacement cost of components of an-existing investnlent ,ror"n, oithc tirne that cost is incurred i.the recognition criteria are met and excrudes the costs ofday-to-day maintenance ofan investment property.

Investment property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its l.air varreat the date of acquisition. Subsequent to initiar recognition, investrnenr propenies arenreasured using the cost model and are depreciated over a-30 year period.
lnvcstment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed ofor when theinvestment property is permanentry withdrawn riom use and no ruture econornic beneat orse.r'ice potentiar is expected fiorn its disposar. The dit'ference betwecn lhe nct disposarprrlceeds and the carrying amount olthe asset is recognized in the surplLrs.r detlcit in thepeliod ol de-recogn ition.

l ransf'ers are made to or from investment proper.ty only rvhen there is a change in use.

c) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost ress accurnurated depreciation andirrpairment losses. Cost incrudes expenditure that is directry attributabre to trre acquisition ofthe items when significant parts ofproperty, prant and .quipr.n, or" required to be repracedat intervals, the University recognizes such parts as individual assets with specilic usefll livesand depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is perfbrr,ed. its costis recognized in the carrying amount of the prant ancr equipment as a repracernent if therecognition criteria are satisfied. A, other repair and ,ruint"nuna. costs arl, recognized insurplus or deficit as incurred. where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction lbr niror nontinal consideration the asset is initially measurecl at its fair value.
The annuai depreciation rates in use are as tbllows

Finance leases are leases that transl'er substantially all ol the risks and benellts incidental toownership of the reased item to the University. Assets herd under a finance .ease are *f;,oiir.aat the cornmencement ofthe rease at the rair varue ofthe lcased propeny or, if rower, at the presentvalue of the future minimum le
r iab i r i ty at tr,e inceptron o iir"fi :"#fl:'; ;T ::::H:l :lT :::::J1T ff ;Xf T:,..7the future minimum lease payments at initial recognitio-n.

25%

t2.5%

30%

25%
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SubseqLrent to initial recognition, I

reduction ofthe lease liability so as

ofthe liability. Finance charges are

ease payments are apponioned between finance charges and
to achieve a constant rate ofinlerest on the renraininq balance
recognized as finance costs in surplus or deficir. An asset held

under a tlnance lease is depreciated over the usef'ul lil'e of'the asset. Howevcr. il'thcre is no
reasonable certainty that the University will obtain orvnership of the asset b1,thc end ol'the lease
ternl. the asset is depreciated over lhe shorler ot'the estin:ated usef'ul lif'e ol'the asset and the lease
ternr.

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantiallv all the risks and bencfits incidcntal to
ownership ofthe leased item to the University. opcrating rease payrnents arc recognized as an
operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lcase tcrnt.

g) lntangible assets

Intangiblc assets acquired separately are initially recognizcd at cost. The cost ol'intangible assets
acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their I'air value at the date ofthe exchange. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accunrulated anlonization and
accurnulated impairment losses.

Internally generated intangible assets, exc lud ing capitalized clevelopment costs. are not capitalized
and expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The usclul lit'e ofthe intangible assers is assessed as either finire or indcfinite.

h) Research and development costs

The Llniversity expenses research costs as incurred. I)evclopment costs on an individLral project
arc recognized as intangible assets when the University ciln dentonstrate:

i) The technical fbasibility of completing the asset so that thc assct \\,ill bc available
for use or sale

ii) Its inlention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

iii) How the asset wilr generate ruture economic benefits or service potential

iv) The availability ofresources to complete the asset

v) The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during developnrent.

Followirrg initial recognition of an asset. the asset is carried at cost less anv accrrrnulated
arnortization and accumulated impaiflrent losses. Arn<rrtization ol the asset beqins when
devclopnlent is complete. and the asset is available lirr Lrse. It is amortized orer the period of
expccted llture benefit. During the period ol' developnrent. the asset is testcd tbr inrpair.rnent
annualll with any impairment losses recognized imrnediarery in surprus or dericit.

i) Financial instruments

a) l'inancial assets

Initial recognition and measu rement

Financial assets within the scope of IpSAS 29 Financial Instrumenls: Recognition and
Measurelnent are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit. loans and
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receivablrs. held-to-maturi ty investntents or available-tbr-sa le tlnancial assets. as appropt.iate. The
[Jniversity determines the classiflcation of its tinancial assets at initial recosnitio.

Loans and receiva bles

l.oans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with flxed or determinable payments
thal are not quoted in an active market. Atler initial rneasurement, such tlnancial assets are
subseqtlcntly measured at amortized cost using the etfective interest method. less irnpainrent.
Amonized cost is calculated by taking into account anv discount or premium on acquisilion and
l'ees or costs that are an integral part ofthe elfective interest rate. Losses arising l'r-om irlpairment
are recognized in the surplus or deficit.

Held-to-maturi tY.

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and flxed InatLrrities are
classitled as held to maturity when the University has the positive intention and abilitl to hold it
to maturity. After initial measurenrent. held-to-rnaturitv investtnents are rneasLr.cd at lrnortized
cost using the effective interest mcthod, less irnpairrnent. Anrortized cost is calcrrlated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and t'ees or costs that are an integral part of
the elfective interest rate. The losses arising liom impairrnent are recognized in sLrrplLrs or deficit.

Imnairm ent of financ ial assets

The University assesses at each reporting date whelher there is objective evidence thar a llnancial
asset or an entity of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or an entity ol'linancial assets is
deetned to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairrnent as a rcsult ot'one
or more evcnts that has occurred after the initial recognition ofthe asset (an incurred .loss evcnt,)
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows ofthe financial asset or lhe
University offinancial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairrnent rnay include
the fol lowing indicators:

i) .I'he 
debtors or an University ofdebtors are experiencing signiticanr llnancial difliculty.

ii) Delault or delinquency in interest or principal pa),rnents

iiil The probability rhat debrors will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.

iv) observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated futurc cash flows (e.g.,
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with detauhs)

b) Financialliabilities

Initial recosnition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through surplus or deficit or loans and borowings, as appropriate. The University deterlrines the
classitlcation of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.. All llnancial liabilities are recognized
initiallY at fair value and. in the case ofloans and borrorvings. plus directly attriburable transaction
costs.

Loans and borrowin s.
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After initial recognition, tnterest bearing loans and borrowings are su bsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effecti ve interest rrethod. Cains and losses are recognized in surplus or
deficit *,hen the liabilities are derecognize'd as well as through the eff'cctive interest nlethod
amorll/iltlon process. Amortized cost is calcLrlated by taking into account anY discount or prernium
tun actlLrisiri.lr and fees or costs that are an integrar pan oI the erfective interest rare.

j) ln\ entories

lnventory is rneasured at cost upon initiar recognition. r'o the extent that inventory u,as received
through tltln-exchange transactions (fbr no cost or lor a nonrinal cost). the cost ofthe invcntory is
its l'air value at the date ofacquisition. Costs incurred in bringing eacrr pr.duct to ils present
location and conditions are accounted for. as litllows:

i) Raw rnaterials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost methoci.

ii) Finished goods and work in progress: cost ofdirect rnaterials and labour and a pr.op6rtion of
manuracturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excruding borr.owing
costs.

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lou,er ofcost and net realizable valLre.
Ho*'ever. to the extent that a crass of inventory is distribLrted or deproyed at no charge or tbr a
notninal charge, that class ofinventory is treasured at the lower ofcost and currcnt rcplacerrent
cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in thc ordinary coLrrse of opcrations. lcss the
estilnated costs of completion and the estinrated costs ncccssary to rnake the sale, exchange, or
distribrrtion. Inventories are recognized as an expense rvhen deproyed rbr Lrtirization or
consurnption in the ordinary course ofoperations ofthe L:nitcrsitt,.

k) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the University has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result ofa past event, it is probabre that an outflow ofresources ernbodying economic benefits
or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estirnate can bc rnade of
the amount of the obligation.

where the tJniversity expects some o' aI of a provision to be reimbursed. fbr exampre. trnder an
insurancc contract. lhe reimbursement is recognizcd as a separate asscl onlv *hen the
reinrbLrrser,ent is vinually certain. The expense reratinq to anv provision is presenled in the
statentent ot' llnancial pertbrmance net of any reimburscrnent.

l) Contingent Iiabilities
'Ihe Unirersity does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details ot'anl,contingencies
in the notes to the financial statements. unless the possibility ofan outllow olresorrr.ces enrbodying
econonric benefits or service potential is rentote.

m ) Contingent assets

The University does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details ofa possible assct whose
existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence ofone or rnore unccnain future events
not wholly within the control ofthe University in the notes ro the flnancial statenrcnts. Contingent
assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately r.eflectcd in the
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n) Nature and purpose of reserves

The University creates and maintains reserves in terrns ol'specilic requirements. r he []niversity.sreserrcs alrd their purpose in indicaterj in the statetncnl of.changes in nct asscts.

financ ia I statements. If it has become virtually certain thatan IN flow of' econorn ic benefits orservicc potcntial will arise and the asset. s valLre can be nreasured reliably. the assel and the relat€drevenuc are recognized in the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs

Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Un iversi

of changes

impract ica l.

o) Employee benefits

Retirenrent benefit olans

ty recognizes the effects ofchanges in accounting poricy retrospectivery..I.he effectsin accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is

The University provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribution
plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an iJniversity pays fixed contributions intoa separate University (a fund), and wir have no regar or constructive obrigation to pay rurthercontributions if the fund does not hord surficient assets to pay a[ emproyee benelits rcrating roemplo; ec service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to fund obrigations for thepayment of retirement benefits are charged against incorne in the year in which'they becornepayable' Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than de1ned-contribution
plans. The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the
projected unit credit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered through Iump sum payrnentsor increased future contributions on proportionar basis to aI participating cnrproyers. Thecontributions and Iump sum payments reduce the post-employment benetit obligarion.
p) l-oreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate ofcxchange on thedate of'the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denorninated in foreign currency or. .."'po,tad utthe starernent offinanciar position reporting date by apprying the exchange ratc on thar date.
Exchange ditferences arising from the settlement ofcreditors. or from the rep.rting ot'crcditors atrates different from those at which they were initia y recorded during the period.'are ,..ngn ir.d
as incoure or expenses in the period in which thev arise.

q) Borrowing costs

Borror-r'ing costs are capitalized against quarifying assets as part ofproperty, prant and equipment.
Such borrowing costs are capitarized over the period during which the asset is being acquired orconstructed and borrowings have been incurred. capitalization ceases when construction of the
asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement of financiar pertbrmance.
r) Rclated parties
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sen ror tnanagetnent

The LJniversity regards a related party as a person or an [Jni versity with the ability to e\crt control
individually or jointly, or to exercise signilicant inlluence over the tJniversity.. or vice versa.
Metnbers of key management are regarded as related parties and conrprisc ol' the Council

The tlnivcrsity analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it entcls into in
determining the appropriale accounting treatrnent and disclosure requircn.rents. In particular.
where a privale party contributes an assel to the arrangenrent. the Universitl.recognizc:, that asset
when. and only when, it contrors or regurates the services the operator must pro! i(re togcthcr u,ith
the assct. to whom it musl provide them, and at rvhat pricc.

ln the case ofassets other than 'whore-of-life' assets. it contrors. through ou,ncrship. bencficiar
entitlenrent or otherwise - any significanl residual interest in the asset at the end of the
arrangelnent' Any assets so recognized are measured at their f'air value. l-o the extent that an asset
has becn recognized, the University arso recognizes a corresponding riabirity. ad.iusted bv a cash
considcrat ion paid or received.

s) Oash and cash equivalents

Cash arrti cash equivalents corrprise cash on hand and cash at bank. short-term deposits on cal
and highly liquid investments with an original lnaturity ol three months or less. rvhich are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk or changes in varue.
Bank account balances incrude amounts herd at the Centrai Bank of Kenya and at varioLrs

comrnercial banks at the end ofthe financiar year. For the purposes ofthese financiar statements.
cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash irnprests and atlvances to authorised public
officers and/or institutions which were nol surrendered or accounted fbr at the entl ot'the llnancial
year are accounted for in accounts receivable

t) Comparative Iigures

whcre necessary comparative figures tbr the previous financiar year have bce, anrended or
reconfigured to conlbrm to the reqLrired changes in prcsentation.

u) Su bscq uent events

'fhe

the llnancial statements for the year ended June 30. 2023

re have been no evenls subsequent to the llnancial year end with a si gnilicant inr pact on

5. Signilicant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The preparation of the University's tinanciar statenlcnts in conrormity rvith rtrSAS requires
nlanaQenlcllt lo make judgnlents. estintates and assulrptions that aflect the repor.leti anrounts ol
revelllles' expenses, assets and liabilities. and the disclosure ofcontingent liabilitics. at the end of
the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estinrates coLrld result in
olllconles that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount ofthe assel or. liabilitl,afl'ected
in future periods. State alljudgements, estimates and assumptions made:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting policies (Continued)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk ofcausing a marerial a justment to the carrying amounts
ofassets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The University based
its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements
were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control ofthe University. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IpSAS 1.140

Useful lives and residual value

The useful lives and residual values ofassets are assessed using the following indicators to inform
potential f'uture use and value from disposal:

a) l he condition ofthe asset based on the assessment ofexperts employed by the University.
b) 'fhe nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptabirity to changes in technorogy and

processes.

c)The nature ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed.

d) Availability of funding to replace the asset.

e) Changes in the market in relalion to the asset

I

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information
available. Additional disclosure ofthese estimates ofprovisions is included in Note 40.

Provisions are measured al the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the obligalion at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the etfect is material.

24



Moi U niversity
Consolidated Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For thc year ended June 30,2023.
6. 'I'ransfers from Other Government entities

[-lnconditional grants
Operar ional (Capitation) Grants
Other grants(ACEII)

USAID

Total tlnconditional Grants

3.438.28I

24.055

8 I].54 r

4,275,877

1.367.523

J.367,523

b) 'I'ransfers from Ministries, Departments and Agencies (MDAs)

7. Rendering of Services

State l)cparttnent
tbr Un iversity
EdLrcat ion and

Rescarch

M inistrl, of
lndu strialization
and [interprise

Developrnent
'l'ola I

4,27 5.877 20.000 4.295.877 1.397.523

102.222

4,378,099
244.139

261,r39
346.36t

4,,612,238

| 95,166

4.,392,689

Tuition f'ees

Registrat ion fees

Students' ID fees
Exanr ination f'ees

Med ical t-ees

Activ it1 t'ees

Ganres and sports fees
Cornputer l'ees

Internet connectivity fees
Application fees
Workshop/attachment fees

t,246.t92
6.156
3,0.14

1t,277
3 5,29.1

2rJ.926

11.847

36,030
t0 7os
,1,038

84,784
t7,949

246.023

1,262,736

9,619
2,8t9

37.346
12,700
39,667
?s ) l1
51.126
50,985

4,221

106,976

27,323
455,012

2,118,763of Services I 80{ 054

Amenity fees

Sundry Income
'l'otal Renderin

E. Sale of Goods
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Accoml.nodation and catering services
Elinr u M illers
Farm ing activ ities
MU l cchnologies income*
Disptrsr I ol'Assets

Rivatcx gross profit
I'otal Sale of Goods

. Elimu Millin

Sales

Open ing stocks
Operating expenses
Closing stocks
Cosl of sales
Dcficit for the ear

ll . Farnr Revenue Account

Sales

Open ing stocks

Operating .*p"nr"i
Personnel costs
Closing slocks 

.

Cost of sales

(Deficit)/su rplus for the vear

5 7..15 3

2.090
45.63 I

709
105,883

(2e3.07s )

187,192

62.s67
23

2.361
I I ,659

76,610

76,610

23
3

t95

198

175

1,836.

5.3t5

2,235
t,686
(262) 

.

(8,974)

(7,138)

2,361

7.374

3,83 |

I,495
(s,3 rs)
(7,38s)

(s,024)

lll . M U 'I'echnol tes

Sales

Cost of salcs
Opening stocks

Opcrating expenses

Closing stocks

8s3

5.3 88

(32,718)

(26,477

19,154

875

26,689

(8s3)

(26,711)

(ls,l42)

45,63 t I I,659

Deficit for the year

. Rivatex lradin Account
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9. Rental Revenue from Facilities and Equipment

Sales
I'ro(lrrct sales
l-ess Rcturn Inwards
'l'otal Sales
Cost of sales
Dir(:ct costs
Opcning stocks
I)Lrrchases
(i los ing stocks
Cost of raw materials
Direct labour
I"actory electricity
Factory water

Ind irect costs
F'irervood expenses
Salalies and wages
Packag ing materials
Desierrs and screens
l-u bricants and oils
Stall' u n ifbrrrs and consumables
Ilepairs & maintenance
Sparcs and consumables
'lailoring consumables
Depreciation

Add: Opening Work in progress
Less: Closing Work in progiess
Cost of good manufactured
Add: Opening Fin ished goods
l-ess: Closing Fin ished goods
C'ost of Sales
O ross profit
Add 0ther Income
'l'otal (; ross Profit

33 r.095
(r.435)

329,660

I8.2 r6
48,I3(r

954

293,071

I (r9.678

J69.678

28.00 r

100.248
(28.264)

99,984
98.686
10.5 r 2

7,8 t6
137,0 t d

I 30,4,{3
67624

(28.00 l)
170,066
i06,064
35.467
8,736

150,,267

r4.3 l8
s2.282

603

0

9.98 r

23

12,710

6769
7.880

t68, t79
272,,7 45
s93,078
309,621

(21 7,ss8)
685,141

79.097
(r50.rss)

6 r,1,083

(2d1,40s)

.t.846

469
16.054
9,748

| 3,20 I

I70.t05
281,729
518,72ti
217,557

( r22.883)
613,40it
l50,lss

( r40.824)
622,735

(293,07s)
I

Rental income
Lease ol motor veh icle

o rsl o )s1 4,323

9,253 4)239 53'l'otal sund tncome

10. llse oI Goods and Services
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'feac 
h inq rnaterials

Postg[tdUate expenses
f rar clling and Accomlrrodalion
expenses

Stationery
Stali developrnent
Research programme expenses
Un ir clsitl, Research programme

debts

Postal and telegram
Crad uat ion expenses
Student admission & exarn ination
expenses

Student welfare services
Extcrnal exam iners expenses
External travel & accornmodation
Con l'erences & sem inars
Public (lelebrations and Official
enterta innrent
Prosrarrme Accreditation
Stall & student weltare
Recru itm cnt expenses
Sl udr'trts uccomrnodation & catering
M isce llaneous 

"*p"ni"sLoss rrn Biological Assers
MU I cchnologies expenses
Farnt cxpenses
ElimLr expenses
Sa les and Marketing Expenses
Finarrce Cosls

3.r23
I 2..+3,1

3. I 2:l
12.43.1

l0-468

25.9 t9 26.142

Fie ld cou lses
CUt quality charges
Senatc expenses
Publish ing and printing
Adve isement & publicity
Olllcc and computer expenses
TelcPh(,nc
Purchir:c ol'uni[orms
Passagc and baggage
(-erctn()n ia I and l'uneral expenscs
l.ibrar'1 books. periodicals & iournals
ISO antl ISO related expenses
Plor isitrrr lbr audit lees
Irrcreirsc in provision Ibr doubtlul

3.869
937

r. 1i7.043
| ,569

I 18,57,1

3,10t
877
428
945

37.906
4t8

1.278
t,017

8t6
t8,012
3.730

6.854

47,130

I0, I 85

635

23,501
I I,570
2.989
3,930

t9.065

2.q66

5.73 |

2,8r5

290

5.275

6.420

6.t 5

931
| .t 12.771

t..569

I t8,574
3,t01

877
428
945

40.721
,1t8

1.278

I.0t7
ti t6

18.0.12

1.7.r 0

6.485

808
r.03 r.130

92,859
4.963

t05

6s6
42.t82

484
8s0

8

2,t86
r.856
t.644
4.020

47.1 .10 23.496

5.2 75

t0. lti5 9.930

6i5 1.694

977

23.50 r

I r.570
2.989
l.910

17,7 58
14,794
5,441

7t0
t5

142
244.196

H2
250.6 t6

977

l,01.775
I4,358
t.897
5.388

3.921
1.456

101.775
1.1.358

t.897
5.-.) 88
j.92 

I

t.456
2,6s7
t,249

I r.528

328
I 93,933

62,637
I3.3 73

2.657 

"

1.249
r t.528

26.689
5 1S7

t95
9,719
t.73t
\ q))

0t3 s7

Admin Expenses

28

996 I 88s I,647 488
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Notes to thc Financial Statements (Continued)

I l. Employee Costs

Basic salary
House allowance
Gratuity and retirement benefits
Car and commuting allowances
Responsibility allowance
Entertainment allowance
Leave allowance
N I'TA
Part tirne payments

2,810,476
997.706
375.537
331,ls3
437.552

r 8.759
t4,573

50.520

I6.9t6

67 436
'Iotal Em I ee Costs 4 604 605 4,672 0.1l

2.550.03 7
955.888
388.7 r5
3 r8,496
354.096

2.600.5 5 7
955.888
405.63 I

3 t8.496
354.096

I 3.930
863

22.s80

I 3,930
861

22.s 80 37.42t
010,606

12. Rcm uneration to Council

. Honoraria to chairman

, Council expenses
'I'otal Remuneration to Council

13. Deprcciation and Amortization

14. Repairs and Maintenance

Veh ic le running expenses
Rent and rates

Electric ity. water & conservancy
Maintenance of build ings
Maintenance ol plant and equipment
'I'otal Repairs and Maintenance

1,044

23,304

24'348

896

3,467

4,363

t.9.10
'r1 't 1t

28,711

t,940

32,613

34,553 
I

5,409

54,060
83,78 I

27.873
6.542

177,665

7,667
6,972
|,194

2.506
18,339

t3,076
61,032
8.1.975

27.873
9.048

196,00.r

27,856
49,36t
83,58 t

18,243

7,33s

Propcrtr. plant and equ ipment
A nrorl itat ion
'l'otal Depreciation and Amortization

98.869

4.10

99,309

5,3t8
751

6,069

I0"1, I 87

t.r9t
105,378

107,929

440

r08J69

29

t86 oi
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting policies (bontinuetl)

I 5. Contracted Services

Insurance expenses

Legal cxpenses
'I'otal (lontracted Services

5 t,500
16,668

68,168

2.176
t.il3
3,289

5.1. (r 76

17.781

7 1,157

25.486
8.997

3,t,483

32

32

16. Gain on Sale of Assets

Properlv , plant and Equipment
Intangible assets

Other assets not capitalised
'l'otal gain on sale of assets

709

709

7 0.)

709

17. Gain on Foreign Exchange

Foreign Exchange Gain
Tolal Contracted Services

t8. Im pairment Loss

30



Intangible assets

Other assets not capitalised
'I'otal lmpairment Loss

Moi [J niversity
Consolidated Annual Reports and Financial Statements
I.or the year ended June 30,2023.

19. 'l'axation

Current income tax charge
Tax charged on rental income
Tax charged on intrest income
Defl'ered tax
Original and reversal o f temporary
d illcrcnces
Inconre tax expenses reported in th€
statemcnt of financial erformance

20. (lash and Cash Equivalents

Delailed analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cu rrent Account
Absa Bank of Kenya
Co-operative Bank of Kenya
Equity [lank
Kenya Commercial Bank
National Bank of Kenya
Standard Chartered Bank
Access Bank

Sub- total
Mpesa/Cash at hand
Mpesa

Cash at hand
Sub- toaal
Grand total

27,650
2,289

t22
387.360
t20,407

309
I1,444

549,580

I 1,357

6,54 t

17,947

?7.650
13,646
6.663

405.307
170.407

309
I 1.444

585,425

58

58
585,{83

67,92s
2,661

r6,603
s87,235
212,089

t7t
s4449

94t,l3l

Annex. iv

35,845

3(r22

22

549,602

941

2,745

Current accounts
Mpesa/cash at hand
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank account (Overdraft)

549,s 80

22
549,602

3s,845
36.

35,881

585.425
58

585,483

94l.l3t
242

942,073

35 8l 585,{83s{9 602 912 073
'l'otal Cash and cash uivalenls

3I

J5
36
8I 94 073
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21. Reccivables from exchange transactions
(a) Receivables from Exchange Transctions (Current

Sturlcnts' lees debtors
Book rhop/irnprest/other debtors'Irlrlc 

arrd olher receivahlcs
Othe r PSSP debtors
Othcl trade receivables

Less: impairment allowance
'l'olal

Totnl (r+b)

t,536 798 lll

1.726,707

42.680
7 5.064

800
84, I 87

I,929,438
(392.641)

-.]80

21.-506

9.1. I78
I16,06{
(1.709)

|.726,707
42,680
75.444
22.306

I45.736
2,012,871
(3 97.3 s0)
6ls 524

r.486.395
7 5.043

t 12.87s

7q.333
r.753,0.16
(.145.5 I l)
I,{ 13,36455 I

*Dtrring the year the University transacted with Rivatex East Alrica Limited which the University
is a major sharehorder. The reported amounts thus net otr upon consoridation toraring to
Ksh.32.629,000 .The amount has nefted off in other rrade receivables.
'I'otal Receivables

Less: Rc lated party Transactions

Kshs.l,648,153

Consolidated Balance

Mor Kshs. t4.680

Rivatex Kshs.l7.949

Kshs. 1,615,52,t

( b) Ageing analysis for Receivables from exchan ge transactions

Comparative
FY

6 I i.0.r6

-51.r.9l l

17.-s t0

(

4-itl.l(r I

1,929,{38 100l,1 1,75J,0{6 t00"h

lowance on Rec

Cu rrenl
FY

Yo of the
total

Less thiln I year

Bel\\ecrr l- 2 vears

Betrreen l-j years

300/"

32%

loyo
Over 3 r ears

460.0.+.1

450.791

r.00 t.5-s0

I7.u5i

28o/o

"h of the
lota I

%

25%

300

l0o/o

conciliation for Im rment Al

32

eivables from Exchan e'l'r nsactions
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At the bcginning ot'the year
Additional provisions during the year
At the end ofthe year

(d Rivatex receivables

Current receivables
Trade receivablii
Prepaymenti

Utiliries deposits
Other Receivables Rivatex
'l'olal Riyatex receivables

11 Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions

Tolal

At thc end of the year

94,178

0

380

21.-s0(r

I 16,06{

r.117.:ll )00% r.335.68e t00%

r,JJ5,689

345.5 r I

47,130

392,641

323.068

22.023

345,51I

0

380
| 9,361

114,662

94.921

The enrpl,yers' Pension and provident Fund contribLrtions rerating to Co ective Bargaining
Agreerncnrs relating to the periods 20r0-20r3 and 20r3-2017 have not been |unded. The
amoLrnts above rerate to the amounts due to be received as a resurt of the CBAs and interest
charged by the Pension and providenr Fund.

Property tax debtors

Levies, llnes, and penalties

Development Grants I I ,544
Other debtors (non-exchange transactions) I.335,689 r,135.689
Less: irnpainnent al lowance

Total rcceivables from non- exchan ge lransactions 1,347 ,233 1,J35,689

Ageing Analysis- Receivables from non_
exchange transactions

2022t202
I

oh ot
the

tola I

Comptrnt
tl'e

t'Y
%

Less than I year

Belrvecn l-2 years
I t,544

%

o/o

o/o

Over J .r'ears r.i35.689 100% r.115.689 t00%

At the beginning ofthe year 1,315,689 r,135,689
Additional provisions duri year(Development grant)ng the I I ,544
Recovered during the year

Written off during the year

1,t.t7,2J3
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23. I nvcntories

(a)

(b)

*lnventories are valued at lower olcost and replacement cost

Amounts Amounts
-qo. 

r6il.looi)Apple plantation 60.217.000

40.000.000

*The Biological Assets Comprise of 80 HA Plantation ol apples values ut 40.U00.000 &
Seedlings (Nursery) 20,000 pieces@ 1000 Toral value 20.000.000. The livestock aggregate

value Kes 3,01 1,833. Total Value Biological Assets 63,01l,gJJ. Loss in biological Assets

amounting to Ksh.1,897,000 has been recognised In the statement offlnanciar pcrfbrnrance

Main
Catcling
R ivarcx inventories
Fann

Elirnu M illers
MU Iechnologies
I-ess: allowance for impairment
'l'otal inventories at the lower of
cosl and net realizable value

{8 r.388
261

3 2.7 r832,7 t8 854

536,023 s6836 48t,388

20,030
1.626

20.030
| .(r2(r

48 r ..j88
t6 r

t8,504
3,0s7

545.710
435

Biological Assets current
Biological assets(Bearer)
'I'otal

247
63,012

247
63.012
63,259

407

44,908
45,31563 59

At the beginn ing

Aggregate gain(loss)

At the end of the year 60.247.000 40. t60.100

Apportinment Current 247.000 r 60.300

Non-current 60,000,000

ii)L ivestock

At the start of the

year 4.908.83 3

Aggregate gain( loss)

At the end ot'the year ..].0 t t.833

( 1.897.000 )
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24. Shareholding in other entities

Kshs Kshs Kshs
R ivatex EA Ltd 1000 I 000 5 00.000 s00.000.000

1000 1000 500,000 s00,000,000
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25.

\otcs tr) the I ina n cial Statcments (Continucd )

l)roltcrtr. l,la n t and Eq uipntcn t

a) IIoi ['nivcrsitv

Land Buildirgs 1l'. t. P
and E ut ntent
Furniture plant

('ont putcrs
& Aero lancs
\Iotor r chicles 'fotal

Cost

Kcs'000 Kes'000 Kes'000 Kes'000 Kes'000 Kes'000 Kes'000.\t I st .rulr 202 I 5J 7.71 5 1,902,752 I..l0J.9.rr 5tJ.{(,0 .119.J93 ,t r 3,820 t',232,132Add it ions
62.200 3 1.752 S.l',.1 t0r.tlAdjustlltcnls

l4ti. H.r
Il8. l.l3,\t 30.lunc 2022 517.7r5 1,050.895 l,l67.tll 575.2 t 2 {2 7. 'lt 5 .l r 3,820 7,{82.569At lst Jutl2022 5{7,715 .1,050,895

I ,467,l4t 575,212 121.786 ,fi3,820 7.,t82,569r\dditions
I5.1.951 l-1.454 5.i) I(;Disposals l7 3.121

( 1,600 ) (r.600)I ransler/ Adiuslntents

At 30.lunt'202-3 517,715 1,050,895 I.62:,095 s88,666 J32.ti02 112,220 7.(,5-1.ISI[)cl)r(cintion an(j lnll)rirnleDt
\t Ist.rulr 202 t I 1.9.17 r.t2-,225 3-0.: I9 232.283 2. 5,312l)cpr ceiat ion

5 6..r 7l
16.6.16 s.-Nl I t.77 ) 95.677Inrp:lrrn(nl

1-t L)

.1.10l rlnsli'r AdjUslntcl]l\

{l 30.lu c 2(}22
r 2.JS6 l. I ti-3.(,9S (, 3ll(,.S66 3lt2..ls I 216.057\l lst.lul\ 2022 2.2 I t.J59t2.J36 I,t8-1,693 0 .186.366 -182.15r 216.057 2.2 t 1.t59l)cfreciaticrn 1ar th( \.irr

la.+7r t) l3l.i1 lr) lss 13.7 71I)i:,posal r.)8.lt(r9

( I.600)lrnpiil,ln,jnl I l.rrrlr)).llrl ()
0 (l

{) 0I ral)s [er, ,,\djust c,)ls .1.r0

At 30 Jure 202J 12.826 1.2.10. t 7l 0 .l (:r5.:00 i 92.7.r 9 258.232Nct book values 1.109. t68

i(r
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At 30 June 2023 534,888 2,810,724 1,622,095 t83,467 :10,063 153,98t 5J45,225
Ar 30 Jure 2022 535,328 2,7 t9,055 1,467,l4t I87,808 45J35 t 67,762 5,122,430

b) Rivatex E.A.Ltd

Cost/Descriptions

Buiklings Buildiog
s (WlP)

PIan( &
Equipnrtn

t

Plerl &
Equiprnent

(wlP)

Furnitu
re&

Fittiogs

Conrputer
s&

Accessorie
s

Office
Equiprne

nt

llotor
Vchicles Total

Kes'000'
Kcs'000'

Kes'000' Kes'000' Kes'000 Kes'000' Kes'0(10' Kes'000' Kes'000'

As at l'r Julv 2021 601,638 80.622 6,099.806 16.100 d,515 6,139
2.111

57,595 6,869,159

At l" July2022 6E2,260 8.755 6,113.205 21,5.t9 4,515 6.9{3 2,346 57595 6,E97,16E

r -1..1-l I )

,\dditions t6.2t2 1.1 _i 70 6 t 4.7 6t l.r4 I0{(} 1_797 71,682

l)isposals

At iO J$ne 2023 698.471 4J325
6,l l7*s99 3r.978 4r515

1,177 3,392 62.392 6.96E,Es0

Dcprccialions

At I"rJulv 20?2 66,105 585572 3,r 93 6,93r 2,101 ssJ36 119 211

l)isoosrl ()bs.rlere

('har!:e l'or thc r car l tlJ l.l? It7.462 I 5l.9.lr ) i(r4 l'71.(''7 2

As at 30 Juoe 2023 83-167 736,513 3,758 6,912 2,53r 58,607 893,91E

Nel lrook valucs

Ir.rn:'li'rs
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6.177.t 22*Land has been treated as Right of use (lntanrrible asset) in Rivatex Financials
c)Consolidated Financial Statements (Moi and Rivatex)

As at 30 Juoe 2023 6t4,90J {sJ2s 5J79,087 3l,978 235 E6t 3,765 6,014,932
\s al .10 .lun! 2022 616,t5.1 8.?55 s.52',:.612 21.5{9 I J2I 239 2,259

As at l'r July. 2021

Additions - tr4U

Additions , Rivatex

Disposals

As at 30'h June 2022

Additions - MU
Additions - Rivatex

Transfers

Disposals

598,037 5,085,890

80,622

598,037 5,166,512

4,577 231

62,200

(66,4 r8 )

4,573,013'

154,954 '

49,331

(.1,333 )

.1,296,121
'i I 7 t')

13.399

3)43,272

t3.454

62

44I,030

8,293

405

488J51

48Ersr

4,',197

( r,600)

49l,UE

(288.066)

I13.771\

(7.19q)

(J09.039)

I t3.771)

( 1.600)

14,488,560

102,245

28,008

I4,618,813

173,424

7 t,682

( 1,600)

14,862J19

(2,889.259)

(96.r r 7)

( r80,{28)

(3.r 65,80.1)

(99J08)

( 1,600)

(t75,422)

(3,142,134)

1

__-' -- -t_ .,

41e_,7?9

5,0t6
6

,280

As at 30'r June 2023
s9E,037 5?-18?;U4 

|
4,712,965 3)6t,t2l 456,024 )Depr€ciation and impairment

At I I' July 2021

Depreciarion - MU

[)epreciation - Rivate_\

As at 30 June 2022

Depreciation - lliU

(42.288)

(.140 )

{75t)
(13,179)

(440)

17! l)
(14,61O)

( I,155.207)

(s6.473) 
,

( 17.056) 
.

(t,228,736) ,.

(56.473)

- !t7.-161) L
(1J02,670)

(r,007,593)

(t6.616)

(l-s3.:31)

(1.t77,772)

(r8.333)

( 153J04)

(l J19,609)

(396,10s)

(8.784 )

( 1.889)

(406,77E)

( 10,288)Disposal

Depreciation, Rivatex

As at 30'h June 2023

Net booL values

(415) l
(4l7rs0l )

(3,2't r)

(J27,684)
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4J7206s
As et 3Or June 2023

As at 30't June 2022
I553J67 3,8E0,05{ 2,0tt5t:2

2J35,140

31523

42,950

ll,/t20,r85

I t 24t,574

63:164

1793t2554,558 : 3,755,933 4,573,013
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Land and buildings/ Equipment (be specific) were varued by in rine with the Nari.nar Assetsand Liabilities Management policy and Guidelines (lssLreri 3Orh June 2020). ;;r.;,";;;;:
were atlopted on 2021 .

25 (b) Property, plant and Equipment at Cost

lf the tieehold land' buildings and other assets were stated on the historical cosr basis theamounts rvould be as follows:

Notes lo the Financial Statements (Continued)

Valuation

5:j1.888

2.8t0.724

t83-46',1

r53.988

-.10.063
'I'otal

6,032,109 2,309,t69 3,723,240

Property plant and Equipment incrudes the folowing assers that are fu y depreciated:

Total

547.7t5

4.050.895

l].827

| .210.171

588.771 405.200

412.220 258.23 2

Ftrrn it Lrrc.l)lant And Mach inery

es. lnclud ing Motorcycles

oln pute rs And Related Equiprnent

Motor Vehicl

('

l.and

Buildinss

432.U01 392.739

Plant and Machinery

MotorVehicles,including
Motorc,yc Ies,Aeroplanes t39.822

Conr p u lers

Equ iprrre nt

and Related

109,061

139,822

I09.0(r7

Office Equipment,
And Fittings

F urn iture

6.85 8 6.85 8

255,747 2s5,717
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

26. Intangible Assets

Cosl
At beginning of the year
Additions

r 5,955
3,989

19,944

3 9,056 15,955

3.989
19,914

55.0 t I

55,01IAt end of the ear 39,0s6

*Rivatex lntangible Asset is included in Consolidated pf,E

27. 'frade and Other payables

The ntaior increa.se in accounts payable are on payroll related ilems such as

pension,provident ond employee bankloan deductions

'Tradc pu.vables comprise of Ksh.70.906,000 ctue b Ri,utcx thar huva nettcrr o/f up,t
con.utlitk kn

*Trade payables t, ts8. t63 r.r5t.562
Payments received in advance 4.37 5.287
Ernployee payables 5,208,208 9 r.390
Th ird-party payments t96,553 89.424
Other payables t 49,473

6,712,397
'fotal trade and other payables

Ageing analysis: (Trade and other payables) 2022t2023

"h of
the

'fotal 202112022

169.17 5

5,8(r0,063

Y" ot
the

I'otal
Under one vear 832.921 l3o/o 481 .922 8yo

l-2 years 481 .92? 'lYo
2 78.3 88 4o/o

2-3 years 278.388 4Yo r0,4.10 t%
Over 3 years 5, t 19,166 76Yo 5,089,3 t3 8'1o/o

Total (tie to above total) 6,712,397 100"/" 5,860,063 100./o

28. Curent Provisions
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.1.020

Notes lo the Financial Statements (Continued)
30.Inr ployce Benefit Obligations

Audit Fees Payable 3.730 r0.980

Kshs'000 Kshs'000 Kshs'000 Kshs'000
Cuffent

Obligation
Benefit

5,208.208

Non-Current Beneflt
Obligation

'l'otal Employee
Benefits Obligation 5,208,208

5.2 0 8.208

5,208,208

Kshs'000

4...r08.280

{,308,280

J I. Borrowings

) Exlernal borrowin

g of the yearBalance at beginnin

External borrowin gs during the year
Repaytnents of during the year
Balance at end of the vear

) Domestic borrowin gs
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Balanc€ at end of the period- domestic and
External borrowings c = a+[ 231,250 2J I ,250

The analyses ofboth external and domestic borrowings are as foltows:

231,250 231,250

(NB: the total of this statement should tie to note 44 tolols. Current portion ofborrottings ure
lhose borrovings lhat are payable t,ithin one ye.t (,r tht nrxl .finuntit yL,or. AlLlitioru
disclosure.s on Ierms of borrot,ings, nuture of borrot,itlgs. scL,urity an.l inlarc.\l rula:; slruuld
be disc'losed). Boruowing.s should be nleosured 0t amorti.tcd (o.\l as par lP,\,4,\ 1l
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Signilicant Accounting policies (Continued)

Balance at beginning ofthe year 23t,250 23t.250
Domestic borrowings during the year

Repayments during the year

Balance at end of the year 231,250 231.250

External Borrowings
Do eD omn nated aLo Fn mro ox as It norgan

Sterling Pound Denominated Loan From .y
Organisation'

Euro Denominated Loan from Z Organisation'

Domestic Borrowings
The Narional Treasury 23t.250 2-] I .250
Total Balance at End OfThe year

Short Term Borrowings (Current Porrion )
Long Term Borrowings 231,250 23t.250
Total 231,2s0 231,250

Short Terrn Borrowings (Current portion)
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Long 
.ferm 

Borrowings

T'olal

32. (lash Generated from Operations

ports and Financial Statements
30,,2023.

231.250

231,250

23 t .2-s0

231 ,250

t23.491)

115.642

( 4.020)

( 1.1s,765)

33. l'inancial Risk Management

The University's activities exnose it to a variety offinancial risks including cretlir .r:tl litruidirvrisks and euecrs ofchanges i1 fo19!gn .r*.n.y. if,"'Uri""rri,r,, overall risk ,nunnr.,n.n,prograrnme focuses on unoredictability 
_of 

chanles i, ,f" U*ir.r, .rri;;;;;;, ;;,::;i;:1:minirnise the porentiar adverse effect lr rr.r, .i'ri, 
""'ii, p.rr"rr"rce by setting acceptabre

Surplus for the year before tax (9sJ.634) (6e9, t 28)
Adjusted for:

Depreciation
104.027 l 08.369

on-cash grants received

osses on d isposal ofassets

N

Cains and I

('ontributed assets

Irnpairnrent

3,730
ontribution to provisions

ing capital adjustments

C

ConrribLrtion to impairment allowance

Work
84,274

(761,003) (s63,24 r )

4.020

23.497

96.859
Increase in in ventory

ncrease In Biological Assets 74.288

71.094

156.863
ncrease in receivables (329,604\ (20 r.606)

Increase in receivables (t t.544)

(e.e86)

574.338

(3.730)

sion for doubrfu I debts

rov ision for audit lees

om operating activities

Increase in Provi

P

Net cash flow fr

lncrease in payables

(370,382)

14
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levels of risk. The University does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure thatcredit is only extended to customers with an established credit hislorv

The [.Jniversity's financiar risk management objectives and policies are detaired bero*,:

i) Credit risk
The university has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty wiI be unabre
to pay amounts in full when due. credit risk arises from cash and cash equivaren,r, ura a"fori,.with banks. as well as trade and other receivables antl available-for-sale flnancial investrrrents.
Management assesses the credit quarity ofeach custorner, taking inlo account its rrnancial
position. past experience and other factors. Individuar risk rimits are set based on internat or
external assessment in accordance with limits set by the dir.ectors. The arrou,ts prcserrted in
the staternent offinanciar position are net ofaIowances fordoubrfur receivabres. 

"rtiirrr,.Jufthe University's management based on prior experience and their assessment of rhe crrrrent
economic environment.

Financial Risk Management

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financiar staternents representing the
University's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account ofthc varue ol'an'
collateral obtained is made up as follows:

As at 30 June 2023

Receivables from
transactions

exchange
1.929.438 1,536,797 392.641

Receivables from
exchange transactions

non-
| ,347.233 I1.544 I ,335,689

Bank balances 5 85,483 5 85.483

'l'otal 3,638,056 2,133,824 1,335,689 392,641

As at 30 June 2022

Receivables from
transactions

exchange
t.67s.374 9l t.572 763.802 3.10.76s

1,335.689 r.33s.689
Receivables from
exchange transactions

non-

Bank balances 942,073 942.073

Total 3,953,136 I,853,645 2,099,491 J{0,765
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a

I

Tho customets under the full
trrding. The credit risk assoc

y performing category
iated with these r€ceiv

are paying their debts as thcy continue
ables is minimal and thc allowance for

Thc Council sets the university's credit poricies and objectives and rays down parameters
within which the various aspects of crcdit risk management ane operated.

urrcollectible amounts that the University has recognised in the financiEl statements is
considered adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts.

i

d

H
il

I
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Iiinancial Risk Management

( ii) Liquidity risk management

Ultinrate rcsponsibility lor liquidity risk management rests with the University's Council. rvho
havc built an appropriate liquidity risk management fiamervork for lhe rranagenrent ol the
Universitl,'s short, medium and long-tenn lunding and liquidity r.nanagcrnent requirerrlents.
The University manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of lbrecasts and actLral

cash llorvs.

The tablc below represents cash flows payable by the [Jniversity under non-derivative linancial
liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the repoding date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within l2 rnonths equal
their carrying balances, as the impact ofdiscounting is not significant.

( iii) Market risk

The Unirersity has put in place an internal audit lunction to assist it in assessing thc risk laced
by the IJniversity on an on-going basis. evaluate ancl test the design and cl-fectivencss of its
internal accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices. such as intcrest rate. equity prices
and tirreiqn exchange rates which rvillallect the University's income or the value of its holding
of llnancial instruments. The objective of market risk nranagement is Io manage and control
markct risk exposures within acceptable paranreters, uhile optirnising the retLrrn. Overall
responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Managerrent ('nrnnrittce .

As at 30 June 2023

Trade payables 6.601 6.601

i.710

Cun'ent ponion of borrowings

Del'crr-ed income

Pro v is ion s 1.710

Employee benefi t obligation 58.327 174.982 699.92 8 (r99.928

Total 58,327 174,982 710,259 710,259

17



The Univcrsity's Risk Department is responsibre rbr the deveropmenr of.deraired riskmanagcnrent policies (subject. to 
. 
review and approval by Audit and Risk Mu,.,,,g",r.;t

cornrnitree) and lbrthe day-to-day imple.rnentation of those policies. Thcre has b".n ,r,;:;;;;;
to the I lnivcrsity's exposure to market risks or the ,rnn", in rvhich it rnanage. ,,,ra ,rr"]ur,,r!,thc risk.

:l) lioreign currencv risk
'l-he University has transactional currency exposures. Suclr exposure arises th16rrs6 pLrrchases
ofgoads and services that are done in currencies other than the rocar currc,er. rrr'oices
denorninared in foreign currencies are paid afler 30 days rrom the date or thc invoice and
conversiorr at the time of payment is done using the prevairing exchange rate. 'r'he university
manages lbreign exchange risk forrn future commercial transactions and recognised asscts and
liabilities by projecting ror expected sares proceeds and rnatching the sarne rvith cxpected
payments.

Moi I niversity
Consolidated Annual Reports and Financial Statemcnts
For thc ycar ended June 30,2023.
Financial Risk Management

The carrying amount of the University tbreign currency denominated rnonetarv
monetarv liabilities at the end ofthe repofting period are as follorvs:

FY 2023

Trade And Other Payables

Rorrorvirtqs

'I olrll l.'inancial Liabilities

Net Foreign
AsseV( Liability)

Currency

asscts and

6.712.198

:.r r.150

6,9{J,5{8

(1.821,261)

As At J0.lune 202J

l.inancial Assets

lnr est rttcrrts

Crslr l90.l6l 195.322

'l'otal I,'inancial Assets

Dcbtors

!-inancial Liabilities

t,516.798

1,926,9s9 195,322

i lJ 5.481

r.5i6.798

2,122,28t

6.7 r2.i98

:lI.I50

6,9{3,5{8

(s,016,s89) r 95.J22
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Financial Risk Management

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

FY 2023

As At J0 June 2023

Irinancial Assets

lnves(ments

Cash 390.16 r t95,322 5 85.481

Debtors t,536,798 t.536.798

Total l'inancial Assets 1,926,959 195,322 2,122,281

Financial Liabilities

Trade And Other Payables 6.7 t2.398 6.7 [.398
Borrowings 231.150 2.',i t. t50

Total l.'inancial Liabilities 6,943,5.t8 6,9{J,548

Net l-oreign Currency Asset{Liabitify) (s,016,s89) 19s,322 (4,82t,267)

The fbllowing table demonstrates the eff-ect on rhe university's statement of comprehcnsive
income on applying the sensitivity for a reasonabre possibre change in the exchange rate ofthe
three main transaction currencies, with all other variables held constant. The reverse would
also occur if the Kenya Shiuing appreciated with a[ orher variabres herd constant.

2023

Euro I Oo/o (5.-.)37)

USD t0% (r4.ls9)
2022

Eu ro t0% (9. t60)

USD t0% (23.276)
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b) Interest rate risk

ana ment f interest rts

To manage the interest rate risk,
olfer t'avou rable interest rates.

Sensitivi tv analvsis

lr lue f na ala an Iiabil

ports and Financial Statements
30,2023.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the University's financiar condition may be adversery affected
as a result ofchanges in interest rate levels. The University's interest rate risk arises fr.m bankdeposits. This exposes the university to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate riskexposure arises mainly from interest rate movements on the University,s deposits.

management has endeavoured to bank with inslitutions that

The University anaryses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting asensitivity analysis. This invorves determining the impact on profit or ross ofdefinerr rate shifts.
The sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other variables. in particular
foreign exchange rates, remain constant.

a) Financial instruments measured at fair value,

Determination of fair value and fair values hierarchy

IPSAS 30 specifies a hierarchy of varuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those
valuarion techniques are observable or unobservabre. observabre inputs reflect nrarket data
obtained from independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the Urrr?r.vly rnarket
assumptions These two types of inputs have created the fo[owing fair varue t i.rur.r,",

o Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets orliabilities. This rever includes risred equity securities and debt insrrumenrs on
exchanges.

o Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable
for the asset or riabirity, either directly (hat is. as prices) or indirectry (that is. derived
from prices).

o Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs). This level includes equity investments and debt instruments
with significant unobservabre components. This hierarchy requires the use of
observable market data when available. The University considers relevant and
observable market prices in its valuations where possible.

ties
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Notcs lo the Financial Statements (Continucd)

iv). Oapital Risk Managemcnt

1-he objective of the University's capilar risk managenrcnr is to saf'cgua^r rhc tni\crsit).s
ability to continue as a going conccrn. The Univcrsity capitar structure conrprises .f the
follou,ing lirnds:

l-i na ncial Risk Management

Revaluation reserve
Reta ined earn ings

('apital rcserve
'lirlal lir nds

'I otal pal ablcs
Less: cash and bank
balances
Net dcbt

(2.766.685)

4,726.313
I,959,628

6.7 r2.398
(5.19.(r02)

73.653
(s.808. I s7)

t{.294.070
ti,559,56(r

6.85 3,5i2
( 5 8s.4{t3 )

73.6s3
(4.618.443)

t"1.0u5.164
9,5{0,57{

5.1r60,063
( 9"12.0 73 )

Cearin
6.t62.796

84'J1,
6.268.049 .1.91 7.990

52"h

34. Itelated Party Disclosures

Nature of related party relationships

Entitics and other parties rerated to the University incrLrde those parties who have abiriry to
exercise control or exercise significanr inflLrence over its operating and rinanciar dccisions.
Relatcd parties include tnanagement pcrsonncl. their associates and close Iarnil' rncrrbers.

Gnvern nrent of Kenya

The Covernrnent ofKenya is the principal shareholderot.the Universit y, ho ld ing I00% ol'rhe
Un iversitl,'s equ ity interest.

Other relatcd parties inclutle:

i) I he l)arent Ministry.
ii) LIn iversity Council Mernbers
i ii.1 Urriversity Senior Management
iv) Rivatex East Africa Lirnited

Relatcs Party Disclosures

i) Key tnanagementl

ii) Iloard o l'd irectors

5l
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

'I'ransactions with related
parties
a) Grants from National

Covernment
(ilants lrom National
(lovcrnment
'lirtal

b) 'l ransfers to related party
Transtbr of capital
de ve loprnent grants to Moi
t in ir, ersity
l ransfbr ol capital

deve loprnent grants to Rivatex
E.A Ltd

4.275,877 102,222 4.378.0ee {.i(.r7.5 t1

1,275,877

31.544

{,367,513

3 I .5.1.1 :i0.000

33,657
97,061

244,139

c) Key management
compensation
Council members expenses
Compensation to key
nranagement
'lirtal

4,s51,560 t02,223 4,653,782 I J0,718

35. livents after the Reporting period

'l'here *ere no material adjusting and non- arijusting events after the reporting pcriod.
36. llltimate And Holding University

The Llnivcrsity is a state Corporation/ or a Semi- Aulonomous Government Agcncl, rrrrder the
Ministry olEducation. Its ultimate parent is the Covernnrerrt of Kenva.

37. Currency

The tlnancial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).

2.14. I .19 I 95. I66
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I9. APPENDIX

Appendix l: Implementation Status of Auditor_General,s Recommen,ations
The tbllowing is the summary of issues raised by the externar auditor, and rnanag,nent
comments that were provided to the auditor.

Presentation and

Disclosure in the

Financial

Statements

The fi nancial statements
have now been titled
correctly as "Moi
University Consolidated
Report and Financial
statements 'to depict its
Consolidation with the
books of the subsidiary
Rivatex East Africa Ltd
We have now numbered
and ensured there,s
consistency in the table of
contents both in fonts and
bolding.
We have also ensured the
page numbering and
referencing is correct.

The statement of changes
in net assets has now
been prepared as per the
approved template
showing the adjustment
of capital depreciation.
Cash and cash
equivalents both for Moi
Universlty and Rivatex
E.A.Ltd in the statement
of financial position and
cashflow are now in
a reement as er the

Resolved

Resolved

N/A
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2 Use ofCoods

2.1 The amount of
Kes.12,746,447 were
accrued invoices which
were later paid in the
financial year under
review thus no need to
include them in the
payables figure in the
financial statements. The
accrual basis requires
that we recognise an
expense when an invoice
is received but not when
paid. We have attached
the payment vouchers
and the paid invoices
2.2 The auditor,s
observation has beennoted and the
expenditure classified
accordingly .The changes
will be reflected in the
revised financial
statements.
2.3 The imprest
surrenders relate to
supervision of students
on teaching practice. The
budget for the excise did
not provide for transport
but subsistence
allowances only which
has been accounted for.
The lecturers make their

financial

a rra ements toown

revised
statements.

Resolved

Resolved

Resolved

NA
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ensure the students are
supervised.
2.4 We have provided the
soft copy of all students
allocated to the university
2.5 The accrued legal fee
invoices are included in
the payables as per the
attached vendor
schedules

3 Employee costs 3.1 During the year under
review gratuity and
retirement benefits were
budgeted and expensed
as per auditors,
observation but not
remitted due to the cash
crunch faced by the
university and the
reduced funding by the
exchequer. On that note
therefore there were no
payments made to the
University Pension
Scheme
3.2 The ledgers for
unfunded pension fund and
provident provided for aLrd it
revrew

3.3 The university

incurred casual wages

amounting to

Resolved NA
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Kes.166,535,803.93 in

the year under review as

per the attached details

and not

Kes.262,187,181as per

auditor's observation. The

auditors seem to have

picked the wrong figure

for the month of August

thus overstating the total

amount.

The amount has been

budgeted for in the

university budget as a line

item and covered under

Basic pay costs in the

financial statements thus

the amount has been

disclosed in the financial

statements.

The statutory deductions

were paid and hereby

provided for audit review

The minutes on their on

how they were engaged

are hereby provided for

your review
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Details relating to the
casuals bio data and
payment advice to the
banks paying the net pay

are hereby provided for
audit review
3.4 The University has
already stated the
process of filling the
positions where staff are
in acting positions. The
positions have been
advertised both internally
and externally. Copies of
the advertisements are
attached for your
reference.

The Government, through
Circulars, provides
guidelines to Government
institutions and Semi-
Autonomous Government
Agencies (SAGAs) on the
recruitment and filling of
vacant positions.
Generally, there has been
a restriction on the staff
hiring due to financial
constraints. For example,
Treasury Circular No.
0212016 gave policy
guidelines on recruitment
of staff, adjustments and
upgrading of staff by
State Corporations and
Semi-Autonomous
Government Agencies
(SAGAs). The circular put

eneral freeze ona
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Unconfirmed
Non Current
Assets

employment except in
core and key positions
where approval must be
granted prior to the
recruitment.

3.5 The increase in
payroll costs was not only
because of CBA arrea rs
but also promotions and
the diagonal
implementation of CBA

which was done for a
period of six months
during the year under
review.

Resolved
1 a. A statement

showing the
loss or gain
and
reconciliation
of the changes
is hereby
provided for
a udit review

The balance reflected in

the draft financial

statements is the total

amount invoiced and paid

to the vendor .Due to
delay in implementation

the total amount is yet to

N/A
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be invoiced thus the

intangible asset is not

understated.

The intangible asset after

full implementation and

payment will be

amortized as guided by

IPSAS 31' The accounting

for an intangible asset is

to record the asset as a

long-term asset and

amortize the asset over

its useful life, along with

regular impairment

reviews'

The ERP is yet to be

commissioned since it's

yet to be fu lly

implemented.

l.l The ERP was
tendered in
2017/18 but
acquired and
implemented in
201912020
with the
finance module
being the first
to be
implemented.
ILs

Resolved N/A
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implementation
was delayed by
the effect of
Covid -19
which
adversely
affected the
University
operations in
the fina ncial
years 2019120
-2021/22. But
with full
resumption of
university
operations in
the current
flnancial year
the remaining
modules will
be fully
implemented
within the
stipulated time

4.3.1 The parcels of land

were not omitted in the

financial statements but

they have been classified

in buildings since when

then University was

purchasing the land was

already developed. Going

forward a revaluation will

be done to ascertain their

respective valuations.

Resolved
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N/A

4.3.2 The supporting

schedule, contract,

payee, certificate of work

done and payment

vouchers are hereby

provided for audit review.

During the year under

review there were no

capital project that were

100o/o complete as per

Appendix iii of the draft

financial statements

4.3.3 The disposal

account is hereby

provided for audit review

Resolved

Resolved

5 Receivables

From Non
Exchange

Transactions

We have
provided list of
student
invoices and
receipts for the
period under
review for
audit
verification
Studentt fee
invoices are
always done
upon
registration of
COUTSeS after

a

b

meetin the

Resolved

Resolved

6l



Moi University
Consolidated Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,,2023.

6 Borrowing of
GOK Loan

requisite
requirement of
payment of
20olo fees by
students as per
the respective
fee structure of
the course
offered to the
student. The
statement of
the student
mentioned has
been printed
and there's no
such entry.
Thus the
observation by
the auditor
might have
been an
oversight.
Attached
herewith is a
copy of the
student
statement

6.1 According to Clause V
(3.2) of the Loan
Agreement between the
Government and Moi

University, the
Government must give
consent in writing to
transfer/assign the
outstanding loan.

The two institutions
initially wrote on 25th

Not

Resolved
J Lrrre 102.1
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May 2016 seeking the
consent as provided for in
the loan agreement
following the signing of
the handing/taking over
of assets and liabilities.
The two institutions were
also seeking segregated
loan schedules indicating
the amount payable by
each institution to
facilitate the repayment
of respective loan
balances.

The non-repayment of
the loan has therefore
been occasioned by the
delay in receiving the
above documents.
However, we have since
received the draft
contract from the
National Treasury that
now allocated the loan
amongst Moi University
and Karatina University.
We have signed the
segregated contract and
remitted back to the
National Treasury, who
have submitted it to the
office of the Attorney
General. We are following
up so that we receive the
fully signed Subsidiary
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Loan Agreement and
consent to transfer the
portion of the loan
belonging to Karatina
University.

Upon receipt of the
segregated loan
schedule, the University

will duly and fully
service its portion of the
loan amounting to Kshs
4t,376,244 as per the
signed handing/taking
over between Moi

University and Karatina
University.

The University paid Kenya
Tea Development
Authority (KTDA) Kshs
169,570,240 (inctusive of
legal fees) towards
acquisition of the
property. In addition, the
University paid Kshs
29,862,000 towards
licence fees and
moveable property. The
amounts were paid in

2009 and 2010 as
indicated in the sale
agreement (a copy of
which was provided to the
audit team at the time).
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The Attorney General and
the National Treasury
have now given consent
for transfer of the loan as
per the signed
agreements between Moi

University and Karatina
University. The University
has already signed the
Subsidiary Loan
Agreement, pursuant to
this consent. A copy of
this agreement is hereby
attached for your perusal.

The University will hence
repay its portion of the
loan for ten years,

commencing December
2022.

a
7 General Trade

Supplies
We have provided the
vendor ledger control
accounts for the sampled
vendors and credit pollcy
for audit review

Resolved NiA

E Budgetary

Control
Performance

The first three items
highlighted by the auditor
are payroll related costs

,which generally are
within the budget hence
no overspent

Resolved N/A
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Ststus of Projccts complction

l00c/o

4

5

6

7

8

GoK134,270 l00o/o

78,040 CoK600,000 82,022

60,308 CoKr50,000 74,031

GoKt00% 96,564t04,647

30.178 GoK33,059150.000

4,200,000 r,058

93o/o9,546 9,546r r,395

GoK600,000 39o/o :

AIA

19,88488,000 28,363 l5o/"

I 1,220

6l 26.23

000

5%

4%1

1,058 GoK

60Yr

A.I.A

i

175%

I

1
I

l

160,39r

20.255

AIA

00,000

94o/o

255,

170,527

2d,iit350,000

World

Bank

lt

t0
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2

3

9

26,000 . r 1,220

Construction of

PDN-Phase II

Construction of

Sewer Line
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Library -
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Hostcl J

Construction of

School of

Sciencc

500No. Lecture

Hall

amptrittreatre-

Digital

lnfonnation

Centrc
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For the year ended June 30,2023.
Appendix V- Inter-University Confirmation Letter

,|,
I

Amounts Disbursed by [SC/SACA,rFundl (KShs) as ar 30rh June
2021

Reference
Number

Date
Disbursed

Recurrent

(A)

Development

(B)

Inter-
Ministerial

(c)

Total

(D)=(A+B+C)

Amount Received by (KShs) as at 3Od
June 2023

(E)
Diffcrences

(KShs)

(F)=(D-E)

FT2221505QCL 03/08/2022 286.523.384 286,523.384
285,35 t,880

FT222515KNXV 08t09t2022 286,523.384 286,s23,384
285.35 r.880

FT22276CHKQY 30109t2022 286,523,382 286,523,382
285,351,E80

FT22273XLDFM 30/09/2022 20,000,000
20,000,000 20,000,000

FT223145TD4Q I l/t t/2022 286,523.384 286,523,384 286,523,384

FT223431NKTB 09/12t2022 286.523.384 ?86.523.384 286.523.384

FT22364V6508 30/t2t2022 286,523.382 286,523,382 286,s23.382

FT23034ZCBCK 03t02/2023 2E6,523,382 286,523,382 286,523,382

Fr2307 628V2Y t7/03t2023 286.523.382 286,523.382 286,523.382

FT23104QTs2 14t04/2023 286,523,382
286,523.382 286.s23.382

70



Moi University
Consolidated Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30 ,2023.

FT23125LBF5W 05/05/2023 286.523.382 286.s23.382
285.35 t.880

FT23160MB6LV 09/06/2023 286.523.382 286,523,382
294.607 -220

FT23178KZGQ 27 /06/2023 286.523382 286,523,382
294,607,222

28t04t2023 24,054,645 24,054,645 24,054,645
Totrl

3,462335,248 20,000,000 3,4E2)5sJ48 3A82,33s24E

.l.a.nr.rrs.r.... siun .........

In confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as ofthe date indicated

t z | >l,.'e.2C#
Date

Ag: Chi€f Fiorocc Omcer

x,-....k!.(^c

i7t
L
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Appendix VI: Rcporting ofClimate Rclevant Erpctrditur€s
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Appandir VII: Rcportlog on Dbtstcr Man!gcrrcnt Erpcnditurc

E-rpcnditure
itcm

Amount
(Kshs.)

CommentsCatcgory ofdisaser rclatcd Activity thst
requirc expcnditurc rcporting
( rrsponsdrccovery/m il i gatiodprcpared ncss)

Programmc Disaster
Typc

Sub-
programmc
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